MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS OF HENRICO COUNTY, HELD IN THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING IN THE GOVERNMENT CENTER AT PARHAM AND HUNGARY SPRING ROADS, ON THURSDAY MARCH 22, 2018 AT 9:00 A.M., NOTICE HAVING BEEN PUBLISHED IN THE RICHMOND TIMES-DISPATCH MARCH 5, 2018 AND MARCH 12, 2018.

Members Present: William M. Mackey, Jr., Chair

Helen E. Harris, Vice Chair

Gentry Bell Terone B. Green James W. Reid

Also Present: Jean M. Moore, Assistant Director of planning

Benjamin Blankinship, Secretary Paul M. Gidley, County Planner R. Miguel Madrigal, County Planner Kuronda Powell, Account Clerk

Mr. Mackey - Good morning and welcome to the March 22, 2018 meeting of the Henrico County Board of Zoning Appeals. All who are able, will you please stand and join us in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Thank you. Now I'll ask Mr. Ben Blankinship, our Board secretary, if he will read the rules for today's meeting.

Mr. Blankinship - Good morning, Mr. Chair, ladies and gentlemen, members of the Board, ladies and gentleman, the rules for this meeting are as follows: Acting as secretary, I will announce each case. At that time, we will ask everyone who intends to speak to that case to stand and be sworn in. Then a member of the staff will present an overview of the case. Then the applicant will present their case to the Board. After the applicant has spoken, anyone else who wishes to speak to that case will be given an opportunity. We usually call for the support first and then the opposition. After everyone has had a chance to speak, the applicant, and only the applicant, will have an opportunity for rebuttal.

After the Board has heard all the evidence on each case, they will open the public hearing on the next case. At the end of the meeting, they'll go back through the agenda, discuss each case, and then make the decision on each case at that time. If you wish to hear their decision on a specific case, you can either stay until the end of the meeting, or you can check the Planning Department website—we usually get it updated within an hour of when the meeting ends—or you can call the Planning Department this afternoon.

This meeting is being recorded, so we'll ask everyone who speaks to speak
directly into the microphone on the podium. State you name, and please spell
your last name just to make sure we get it correct in the record.

Finally, Mr. Chair, we do have one withdrawal this morning. This came by email last night at 7:30. It is the first case on the agenda, CUP2018-00004, Douglas Christopherson.

CUP2018-00004 DOUGLAS CHRISTOPHERSON requests a conditional use permit pursuant to Section 24-12(e) of the County Code to allow a noncommercial kennel at 3016 Overton Road (PINEHURST GARDENS) (Parcel 775-747-2027) zoned One-Family Residence District (R-4) (Brookland).

Mr. Blankinship - This case has been withdrawn, so it will not be heard this morning.

52 Mr. Mackey - Thank you, Mr. Blankinship. May we call our first 53 case?

55 Mr. Blankinship - The first case is CUP2018-00005, Robert C. And 56 Brenda C. Brown.

CUP2018-00005 ROGER C. AND BRENDA C. BROWN request a conditional use permit pursuant to Section 24-95(i)(4) of the County Code to build an accessory structure at 9001 Lydell Drive (Parcel 778-757-7278) zoned One-Family Residence District (R-2) (Fairfield).

Mr. Blankinship - Would everyone who intends to speak to this case please stand and be sworn in. Raise your right hands, please. Do you swear the testimony you're about to give is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth so help you God? Thank you. Mr. Madrigal?

68 Mr. Madrigal - Mr. Secretary, Mr. Chair, members of the Board, good morning.

Before you is a request to build a detached garage in the front yard of a corner lot. The subject property is located at the northeast corner of Lydell Drive and Parham Road. The lot is a residual acreage parcel not part of the North Run Hill subdivision, which was established in the late 1950s and 1960s. The lot is improved with a one-story, 3,700-square-foot residence with a finished walk-out basement and an attached carport. The home was built in 1968. Access to the property is by way of an asphalt driveway off of Lydell Drive, and that is visible right here.

Although the lot fronts on Parham Road, the home is oriented towards Lydell Drive and is consistent with the homes to the north of it. Consequently, the home

has a 45-foot front setback from Lydell, and a 10-foot setback from the northern property line, which is technically the lot's rear lot line.

The property owners acquired the lot in 1998 and now wish to construct a large, detached three-car garage made of steel on the property. The proposed building will be placed to the rear of the residence and ten feet distant from the existing carport in what is the lot's front yard. This is the proposed structure. The proposed garage will be oriented towards Lydell and will capitalize on the existing driveway for vehicular access. The building will measure 24 feet deep by 36 to 40 feet wide and will be approximately 10 feet in height as measured to the midpoint of the sloped roof. The steel building will be painted a tan color and will have a black roof.

The property is zoned R-2, and is designed SR-2 on the 2026 Land Use Plan. A one-family residence is a principally permitted use in the R-2 District and is consistent with the land use designation. Although the proposed garage is an accessory use that is customary and incidental to a one-family dwelling, it is required to be placed in the rear yard. In this case, it will be technically located in the front yard, which requires the approval of a conditional use permit.

The applicant's have a one-story brick rancher with a walk-out basement off the rear of the home. It has an attached carport at the southern end of the home. This layout is consistent with most of the homes along Lydell Drive, which have either open parking or carport parking integrated into the design of the home. There is only one example of a detached garage along this block face. In that example, the garage is located in the rear yard and is of typical wood frame construction. You can see the garage in the back here. The front facade is finished with brick and remaining facades are improved with vinyl siding consistent with the finished architecture of surrounding homes.

The proposed steel building will be inconsistent with respect to scale, location, and finished materials as compared to the subject home and the rest of the neighborhood. The installation of a large, metal building could detrimentally impact nearby property, diminish the architectural character of the neighborhood, and establish a negative precedent. Furthermore, it appears that the proposed location for the garage conflicts with an existing drainage easement running along the rear of the home, and that's visible right here.

In conclusion, the applicant's property is not officially part of the subdivision, but it is a part of the neighborhood. Its prominent location makes it a highly visible example and entrance feature to the community. Although the lot fronts on Parham, the home is oriented toward Lydell, which is technically a side street. The proposed garage will be located in the front yard in full view of two public and highly traveled streets impacting the streetscape. The proposed garage is out of scale and architectural context with the existing home and the

127 128 129	neighborhood. And the neighborhood's established	
130 131 132 133 134 135	property, neighborhood of precedent. Based on the the applicant were to cha	osed garage poses a detrimental impact to nearby character, and if approved could establish a negative facts of the case, staff recommends denial. Although if ange his proposal to a 24-by-24-foot typical wood frame estreet-facing facades, staff could support the request.
136 137 138 139	_	es my presentation. As a side note, staff has received ition to the applicant's request. I'll be happy to answer ave.
140 141 142	Mr. Mackey - Board for staff or Mr. Mad	All right, thank you. Are there any questions from the rigal? Thank you, sir. Can we hear from the applicant?
143 144	Mr. Brown -	Good morning, Mr. Chair. In this proposal
145 146 147	Mr. Mackey - name?	For the record, can we get you to state and spell your
148 149 150	Mr. Brown - Brown.	Yes. Roger Brown, B-r-o-w-n, along with Brenda
151 152	Mr. Mackey -	Okay. All right, thank you, sir.
153 154 155 156 157	couldn't tell the difference	The construction of this three-car garage, even design would be so similar to vinyl that you probably e. When I spoke to the builder, he has a product that The only part that would be obvious is the tin roof.
157 158 159 160	Mr. Mackey - look like?	Did you bring any pictures or anything of what it would
161 162	Mr. Brown -	Not at this time.
163 164 165	Mr. Mackey - questions for Mr. Brown?	All right. Did anyone from the Board have any
166 167	Mr. Bell -	Did you read the conditions of the report?
168 169	Mr. Brown -	Yes sir.
170 171 172		Were you familiar with what Mr. Madrigal said about if he existing brick of your house and make it look more nce, as the other garage down the street does, and

reduce it in size that we might be able to discuss whether we can approx not.		might be able to discuss whether we can approve that or
175 176 177	Mr. Brown - brick because of the cost	Okay. Could I bring a proposal back maybe not with ? My home has vinyl siding on the A section
178 179 180	Mr. Bell - the condition that's alrea	Our condition, as far as I'm concerned now, would be dy been proposed.
181 182 183	Mr. Brown -	I'm sorry. Repeat that again?
184 185	Mr. Bell - condition that we've alrea	I would say that you would have to stick with our ady proposed, which is condition #4 of the report.
186 187	Mr. Brown -	Which is all brick?
188 189	Mr. Bell -	Well it doesn't say that.
190 191	Mr. Brown -	Okay.
192 193 194	Mr. Bell - stick to this.	We would discuss it, Planning would, if you could
195 196 197	Mr. Brown - contractor could do for m	Okay. I'll go back and review it and see what the se.
198 199 200 201	-	Mr. Brown, you said you could reduce it? Condition #3 be no greater than 24 feet by 24 feet. Do you think you se? I know you wanted a three-car garage.
202 203 204 205 206	•	If I could, I would prefer—to accommodate what I be to the public so I can park those cars in there, a three-I enough for me. Nothing larger. If I go smaller, then it bugh for me to build it.
207 208 209	Ms. Harris - not limit the size?	So you're saying no to condition #3, that you could
210	Mr. Brown -	To a 24 by 24?
212	Ms. Harris -	Yes.
214 215	Mr. Brown -	It would not be feasible for me at this time.
216 217 218	Ms. Harris - across your land?	Okay. Were you aware of the easement that's running

219		
220	Mr. Brown -	In the rear?
221		V.
222 223	Ms. Harris -	Yes.
224 225 226	Mr. Brown - another fifteen to twenty be built.	Yes. I didn't know I was that close to it. It's at least feet from the rear of the garage where it's supposed to
227 228 229 230	Ms. Harris - aware the proposal you residential feel. Are you c	Okay. Because the garage will be so large, are you have kind of creates an industrial feel rather than a oncerned about that?
231 232	Mr. Brown -	I will consider it, yes.
233 234 235 236	Ms. Harris - come up with a structure	So do you think your architect or your contractor can that looks more like your house?
237 238	Mr. Brown -	Yes.
239 240 241	Ms. Harris - saying?	But it would not be 24' by 24'. Is that what you're
242 243 244 245	Mr. Brown - to me. If I had to go to the purpose.	I prefer not. The larger size would be more beneficial ne twenty-four, it wouldn't be substantial enough for the
246 247 248	Ms. Harris - backyard?	Are there any more accessory structures in your
249 250	Mr. Brown -	I have a shed to the left in the back, yes.
251 252	Ms. Harris -	Just one?
253 254	Mr. Brown -	Two.
255 256 257	Ms. Harris - huge three-car garage th or that you could see from	I drive by there a lot. I was just trying to imagine this at we could see when we turn into Lydell from Parham Parham.
258 259 260	Mr. Brown -	Okay.
261 262 263	Ms. Harris - conditions and consider th	I think you should probably look seriously at the nose.
264	Mr. Brown -	Okay. I will reconsider.

265	M. D. II	As Mar Clause and Darkons is absent like your freet
266	Mr. Bell -	As Ms. Harris said, Parham is almost like your front
267		e metal building up, my concern is making it look more
268		al. And also, it's not just Lydell. Your backyard or side
269		ar of those two houses behind you. So they, too, have
270		up. So it is a problem that deals with fitting what you
271	want into the lot that you	want it to be put on. So in order for more consideration
272	to be given to you, I thin!	when you carry it back to your architect, keep those
273	factors in mind.	
274		
275	Mr. Brown -	Okay. I will.
276		·
277	Mr. Green -	Could you go back to the picture of the house, yard,
278	and that? So you want a	three-car garage, but you also want to still keep your
279	carport.	1
280		
281	Mr. Brown -	Correct. That's not enclosed right now.
282		Control make not enclosed ngm nem
283	Mr. Green -	Have you ever thought about converting your carport
284	into a three-car then making	•
285	mo a tinee our their makin	ng it more consistent.
286	Mr. Brown -	That can be a two-car, but not a three.
287	WII. DIOWII -	That can be a two-car, but not a times.
288	Mr. Green -	But what I'm saying is if you bring it out a little bit
289	more, just wrap it around .	, , , ,
	more, just wrap it around .	•••
290	Mr. Brown -	Okay I can speak with the contractor
291	IVII. BIOWII -	Okay. I can speak with the contractor.
292	Mr. Green -	Then you'd basically have a five-car facility. Right?
293	MI. Green -	Their you dibasically have a live-car facility. Night:
294	Mr. Brown -	Leguld Could possibly yes
295	IVII. DIOWII -	I could. Could possibly, yes.
296	Mr. Green -	Are you going to use five earn or are you going to use
297		Are you going to use five cars or are you going to use
298	three cars?	
299	M. D.	Non-reliante and there
300	Mr. Brown -	I'm going to use three.
301		
302	Mr. Green -	So what happens with the carport?
303		
304	Mr. Brown -	It would remain there, basically an open area.
305		
306	Mr. Green -	And you would consider seeing if your architect could
307	•	arport into your three car since you're only going to use
308	three cars. That way you a	achieve what you want.
309		
310	Mr. Brown -	Okay, I will.

311		
312	Mr. Green -	Or is it a matter of cost?
313		
314	Mr. Brown -	It is a matter of cost, too, but I will see, and look at the
315	proposal of the 24' by 24'.	
316		
317	Mr. Mackey -	Mr. Brown, you did receive a copy of the conditions?
318		
319	Mr. Brown -	Yes.
320		
321	Mr. Mackey -	Okay, I was just making sure. All right. Were there
322	any other questions for Mr	. Brown or Mrs. Brown?
323		
324	Mr. Blankinship -	I would just ask, do you have a sense of how long you
325	would like to have to recor	nsider?
326		
327	Mr. Brown -	Thirty days?
328		•
329	Mr. Blankinship -	This board meets once a month, so if the board
330	decided to defer, it could	either be the April meeting or the May meeting, or
331	farther out, if it's better for	you.
332	,	•
333	Mr. Brown -	April will be fine.
334		'
335	Mr. Blankinship -	April meeting, okay.
336	•	,
337	Mr. Green -	It's always hard to get an idea. If you're saying they're
338	using a new material, coul	d you get them to give you a sample or what that new
339	material looks like?	
340		
341	Mr. Brown -	I will.
342		
343	Mr. Mackey -	All right.
344	•	
345	Ms. Harris -	Mr. Mackey, are we're going to defer this case until
346	next month?	,,
347		
348	Mr. Mackey -	Well, we have to make a motion. I have to give an
349		wants to speak since we started the case.
350		
351	Ms. Harris-	Okay.
352		,
353	Mr. Mackey -	Was there anything else, Mr. Brown?
354	,	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
355	Mr. Brown -	No. Do you have any other questions of me?
250		,

357	Mr. Mackey -	Not at this time.	
358 359	Mr. Brown -	Okay.	
360 361 362 363 364		All right. Is there anyone here who would like to spea ation? Is there anyone who would like to speak i hank you. Can we have the next applicant?	
365 366 367 368	-	the public hearings, the Board discussed the cas This portion of the transcript is included here fo e.]	
369 370 371	Mr. Mackey - motion?	The applicants requested a deferral. Do we have	а
372 373	Mr. Green -	So moved.	
374 375	Ms. Harris -	Second.	
376 377 378	Mr. Mackey - set a date. He said thirty d	It's been moved and properly seconded. We need tays would be good enough?	0
379	Mr. Green -	That's what he said.	
380 381 382	Mr. Mackey -	Does anyone know the date of the next meeting?	
383 384	Mr. Blankinship -	That would be April 26th.	
385 386 387 388		Okay. So this one would be deferred to the new ll in favor say aye. Those opposed say no. There is new sses. The ayes have it 5 to 0.	
389 390 391 392	Ms. Harris, the Board de	hearing and on a motion by Mr. Green seconded be ferred application CUP2018-00005, ROGER C. ANI ts meeting on April 26, 2018.	-
393 394 395 396 397	Affirmative: Negative: Absent:	Bell, Green, Harris, Mackey, Reid 5 0 0	
398 399	[At this point, the transc	cript continues with the public hearing on the nex	ίt

March 22, 2018

40 I

Mr. Blankinship - That is the end of our conditional use permits. We'll now begin variances. VAR2018-00003 and 00004, Meridian Development Incorporated, are companion cases.

VAR2018-00003 MERIDIAN DEVELOPMENT INC. requests a variance from Section 24-95(b)(5) of the County Code to build a one-family dwelling at 101 S Confederate Avenue (SANDSTON) (Parcel 825-715-9922) zoned One-Family Residence District (R-3) (Varina). The lot width requirement is not met. The applicant proposes 60 feet lot width, where the Code requires 65 feet lot width. The applicant requests a variance of 5 feet lot width.

VAR2018-00004 MERIDIAN DEVELOPMENT INC. requests a variance from Section 24-95(b)(5) of the County Code to build a one-family dwelling at 103 S Confederate Avenue (SANDSTON) (Parcel 825-715-9922) zoned One-Family Residence District (R-3) (Varina). The lot width requirement is not met. The applicant proposes 60 feet lot width, where the Code requires 65 feet lot width. The applicant requests a variance of 5 feet lot width.

Mr. Blankinship - Would everyone who intends to speak to either case, please stand and be sworn in. Raise your right hands, please. Do you swear the testimony you're about to give is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth so help you God? Thanks. Mr. Madrigal?

Mr. Madrigal - Thank you, Mr. Secretary. Mr. Chair, members of the Board, before you is a request to build two, single-family dwellings on substandard-sized lots. The subject property is located at the southwest corner of Confederate Avenue and W. Berry Street in the Sandston subdivision, which was established in the early 1900s. The property abuts the Richmond International Airport at its southern and western boundaries. Both W. Berry and S. Confederate terminate at or near the property. A section of West Berry Street abutting and running along the northern edge of the property is unimproved. You can see that right along here.

The property consists of two lots measuring approximately 60 feet wide by 162 feet deep. It is currently improved with a one-story, 1,085-square-foot residence with open parking, constructed in 1918. The house sits on the middle of the property, straddling the property line. Additionally, there is a one-story, 360-square-foot metal storage shed in the rear yard.

The applicant purchased the property in November 2017 with the intent of improving it similar to the recent renovations he completed across the street at 106 S. Confederate Avenue. Here's that property on the screen. Instead of renovating the subject residence, the applicant intends to demolish it and build a new home on each of the two lots that comprise the property. Although the lots are subject to the pre-1960 exception standards, they are substandard in width

and would require a variance to be developed independently. The code requires sixty-five feet of lot width and each lot is only sixty feet wide.

By statute, a variance is a reasonable deviation from certain provisions of the code when strict application would unreasonably restrict the utilization of the property or it corrects an inequity as compared to other properties. In this case, the subject property is an oversized lot that has an existing beneficial use. Although the applicant would like to demolish the existing home and develop each lot independently, the lots do not meet minimum lot width requirements. Additionally, the existing home is original to the property and is one hundred years old. The two lots that make up the property have been in this configuration all that time. The property as a whole has a beneficial use, and there is no basis for the variance. Thus the request does not satisfy the threshold question.

With respect to the five subtests, item #1 requires that the property was acquired in good faith and any hardship was not created by the applicant. Although it appears that the applicant acquired the property in good faith, by attempting to develop the lots separately, he is creating a self-inflicted hardship. The property has an existing beneficial use and has no deficiencies when compared to other lots in the subdivision. Furthermore, the property has the advantage of being an oversized lot with greater options for its use and enjoyment as compared to other properties in the neighborhood.

Item #2 requires that the granting of the variance will not be a substantial detriment to adjacent and nearby property. The home is part of a cluster of dwellings in this neighborhood built in 1918 by the U.S. Housing Corporation during World War I to support the munitions plants. Many of these homes remain intact on the street and the surrounding area. Most of these homes are on lots ranging in size from seventy to eighty feet in width. Preservation of the architectural and historical integrity of the neighborhood is of concern to the County. Granting the variance would not necessarily result in a substantial detriment, but it would lead to an increase in density, added traffic, and the removal of an architecturally contributing structure in a small and historically significant neighborhood.

Item #3 requires that the condition or situation of the property is not of a general or recurring nature requiring an amendment to the Zoning Ordinance. Although lot-width waiver requests are common, they are examined on a case-by-case basis to determine their merit. In this case, the applicant owns property consisting of two independent substandard lots that abut the airport on two sides. It has sufficient street frontage and abuts an unimproved right-of-way at its northern edge. Although the applicant can't acquire private land to increase his property dimensions to satisfy code, it is possible to request a vacation of the unimproved right-of-way as an alternative, especially since there's little chance of the County improving it as it dead-ends into the airport.

Items 4 and 5 are satisfied, as outlined in the staff report.

493 494 495

496

497

498

499

500

501

502

503

504

In conclusion, the existing home on the subject lot was constructed in 1918 and is a contributing example of the architectural character of this historically significant neighborhood. The property in its current configuration complies with the lot width requirements for the underlying zoning district and has an existing beneficial use. Demolishing the existing home to make room for two new dwellings would create two substandard lots needing variances. Because this would create a self-imposed hardship, there is no legal basis to grant the variance. Also, the applicant has several available options to improve the property without the need for the variances. He can renovate the existing home. He can demolish it and build a new home. Or he can explore the street-vacation option to acquire additional land to enlarge the property for further development.

505 506 507

Based on the facts of this case, staff recommends denial. This concludes my presentation. I'll be happy to answer any questions.

508 509

All right. Thank you, sir. Are there any questions from Mr. Mackey -510 the Board or staff? 511

512

Quick question. You last stated "acquire additional Mr. Bell -513 property." Are you referring to street frontage? 514

515

I'm referring to this unimproved section of roadway Mr. Madrigal -516 here. Right now it's just a treed area. The County doesn't have any intention of 517 developing it, primarily because there's really no use for it. It dead-ends into the 518 airport. So there's no public benefit. So the applicant could apply for a vacation of 519 that portion of the street. He would get half; the neighbor would get the remaining 520 half. He could also explore retaining the entire width by purchasing the other half 521 that the neighbor would get. 522

523

Mr. Bell -Thank you. 524

525

Ms. Harris -Mr. Madrigal, do you know how wide that adjacent 526 property is? 527

528

It's about forty feet. So he'd end up twenty feet. Or if 529 Mr. Madrigal he attempted to purchase the other twenty, he'd have forty additional feet. 530

531

Currently, he's ten feet short total? 532 Mr. Mackey -

533

He's five feet short on each lot, so a total of ten. 534 Mr. Madrigal -

- On each one. So ten feet, okay. All right. Thank you. Mr. Mackey -536
- Any other questions for Mr. Madrigal? All right, thank you, sir. Can we hear from 537

the applicant? When you approach, please state and spell your name for the record.

Mr. Austin - Good morning. My name is Marty Austin. A-u-s-t-i-n. I'm the owner and president of Meridian Development. I'm the only owner and the only employee of the company. Thank you for hearing my case this morning.

Mr. Mackey - You're welcome, sir.

Mr. Austin - Let me first say that my original intent when I purchased this property, which is two lots with the dwelling currently in the center, was to renovate this property, just like the one in the previous picture that you saw. Unfortunately, when we went to start demolishing the property, the significance of the deterioration from the house being vacant and open to the elements over the years is to an extent that it's not cost-feasible to renovate it, unfortunately. There is significant damage to the foundation. The house itself, there's a lot of rot in the wood. I guess the straw that broke the camel's back was when we started to pull the sheetrock back. We noticed a substantial amount of mold on the interior of the walls, which I didn't encounter when I first inspected it. When we moved upstairs, because of the damage to the roof, the attic has mold in it as well.

I'm not in the new construction business; I'm in the renovation business. I like taking old properties and making them look new again, improving the appeal of the neighborhood. Unfortunately, I can't save this property. I just can't save it. Based on the cost that I had for the property itself because of the two lots, to be able to demolish it and then renovate and put a new house up, just one house, it would exceed the marketable value for a house in that neighborhood.

So what I'm proposing is to put two houses of identical width, just like the two lots across from it that also received variances to put the same size house at the end of this street. One thing that you don't see by the overhead shots here—if I may approach, I'd like to show you what the house that I purchased in September of this past year looked like before it was renovated. This is what I'm trying to do in this small neighborhood. While I understand the significance of the historical impact in this area, quite frankly there are a lot of houses on this street that are rundown and are in need of major repair. What I'm trying to do by putting two brand new residences up in this neighborhood is to improve the appeal of it. Not only to add an additional house for additional family housing for Henrico County, but to add to the tax base as well.

That's what I'm trying to do. I would really like to renovate this property, but unfortunately the cost associated with just having a single property there would far exceed the marketable value.

583 Mr. Mackey - Mr. Austin, the County greatly appreciates the work 584 that you do to improve the neighborhood any way you can and everything. But 585 the duty of the Board—I think I speak for everybody—is what the law and code 586 allow, which is to grant a variance when we can. What you're asking us to do 587 would be creating two variances, and that's not what we're here for.

As Mr. Madrigal spoke earlier, you have some other options that you could look into that would alleviate your situation and you wouldn't need a variance at all. Have you looked into those other options?

Mr. Austin - I have. Here's the issue with the other options. Two of three options are to renovate the existing structure or demolish it and rebuild another one, both of which, as I've identified, are cost-prohibitive based upon the size of houses in this area. They're all about the same size. There are no additional structures. There are no garages. They're all single-family dwellings. And the lot itself is significant in size; it's just the narrowness of that lot.

The third option would be the vacation of the right-of-way. Unfortunately, I found out the hard way that—if you look at the initial picture of the house, the one across the street, that right-of-way has a substantial amount of tree growth on it, including some I'm sure 100-year-old live oak trees and a substantial amount of bamboo on it. That right-of-way, I asked the airport about, because these houses butt up against the airport property. If you'll notice in that first picture, there's a significant amount of overgrowth in trees that I felt like would do damage to the roof on this house.

Mr. Mackey - Can we see the picture across the street please?

Mr. Austin - The original picture. If we were to vacate that right-of-way, if we were to use that right-of-way and clear that property, you're getting rid of all those trees. And what I found on the one across the street is when you cut those trees back, the jets on the airport, when they fire their engines up, it's an incredible sound. It's a sound issue. If we take away that right-of-way, and I'd have to take that running bamboo and those trees out, then you're creating a noise issue for the rest of the neighborhood. Obviously, there's a cost associated with clearing that lot and getting it to where it would be usable. But when you take out forty feet of trees, you can already hear these jets in this neighborhood, and I think it would be a nuisance to the rest of the neighborhood.

622 Mr. Mackey - Yes, Mr. Green.

624 Mr. Green - Could you go back to the original picture where you had the lot across the street? No, the one that had . . . no, go back. No, the one that showed the plat.

Mr. Mackey - The aerial?

629				
630	Mr. Green -	Yes, the aerial. Across the street, what you said is		
631		is to me as though that house is sitting one lot. Across		
632	there are two lots. A varia	nce was given for that.		
633				
634	Mr. Austin -	Yes sir.		
635				
636	Mr. Green -	Could somebody explain how that happened and his		
637		ed across the street where there are two houses, looks		
638	like his—is the lot the sam	ne size?		
639				
640	Mr. Madrigal -	Yes sir. The subdivision is originally from the 1900s.		
641		street, when it was developed it was built with that one		
642	house in 1918. I'm not sure if the lots were one property at that point. But in			
643	1975, that second home was basically moved onto the property. It wasn't built			
644		And there was a variance granted for the lot width		
645		g because of the architecture and the size of the home,		
646	it's consistent with everything else in the neighborhood, it was probably			
647 648	onto that property. That or	ed from another lot in the neighborhood and brought		
649	onto that property. That of	curred in 1975.		
650	Mr. Blankinship -	Those two lots were never owned by the same person		
651	at the same time.	Those two lots were never owned by the same person		
652	at the same time.			
653	Mr. Madrigal -	That I'm not sure of.		
654	Will Widdingar	That The hot sale of.		
655	Mr. Blankinship -	Those two lots I think were sold separately,		
656	•	ouse was built on one back in 1918. The other one, the		
657	, , ,	in 1975. In this case, they originally developed the		
658	property by building the or			
659	p			
660	Mr. Green -	I guess what I'm asking is what's the difference		
661	between what he wants to	o do on the left side versus what's on the right side. It's		
662		e two houses on the right side. He wants to do two		
663	——————————————————————————————————————	ney're at the end. What's the difference?		
664		•		
665	Mr. Blankinship -	The outcome would be the same. What he's		
666	proposing would be the sa	me outcome as what you have across the street.		
667				
668	Mr. Green -	I know we have to follow the variance requirements,		
669	but it appears it's okay for	the right side but it's not okay for the left side. I'm just		
670	perplexed as to why.			
671				
672	Mr. Mackey -	One of those lots may have already had a house		
673		the other one was unable to be developed without a		
674	variance. We don't have	that same situation with this lot that he's requesting		

675 676	because there are two lots there, and he owns both those lots. So we can't say that he cannot build a house there. He does have the opportunity to build a house there because he has two lots. If we allow him to split it, then we're		
677		has two lots. If we allow him to split it, then were	
678	making two variances.		
679	Mr. Crosn	Why can't we do that?	
680	Mr. Green -	Why can't we do that?	
681	Mr. Manlens	Decayee the ende says we're not supposed to	
682	Mr. Mackey -	Because the code says we're not supposed to.	
683	Mr. Cross	Okov	
684	Mr. Green -	Okay.	
685	Mr. Blankinghin	Because he has reasonable use of his lot. The person	
686	Mr. Blankinship -	t that time in 1974 did not have reasonable use of their	
687			
688	•	d was the sixty-foot lot. There was already a house on	
689	the other lot. So they had	no other option.	
690	Mr. Cross	Could we give him a variance if we wanted to?	
691	Mr. Green -	Could we give him a variance if we wanted to?	
692	Mr. Blankinghin	It's nessible. I mean if it decen't go to court, it stands	
693	Mr. Blankinship -	It's possible. I mean if it doesn't go to court, it stands.	
694	Mr. Maakov	Vou'd he well l'Il leave it alone	
695	Mr. Mackey -	You'd be—well, I'll leave it alone.	
696	Mr. Blankinship -	If a variance is granted and it's challenged in court,	
697		ity—and nobody knows—that the Circuit Court would	
698 699	reverse the decision.	ity—and hobody knows—that the chedit court would	
700	reverse the decision.		
701	Mr. Green -	Challenged by other neighbors you mean.	
701	Wii. Oreen -	Challenged by other heighbors you mean.	
703	Mr. Blankinship -	Yes. And anyone who had standing to challenge.	
704	W. Barkinomp	100.7 and anyone who had standing to originings.	
705	Mr. Austin -	I purchased that other lot in September. The family	
706	that owned that lot—	paramaca mat other for in copiemizer. The tarming	
707			
708	Mr. Mackey -	What are you talking about, Mr. Austin?	
709	,	<b>3</b> · ,	
710	Mr. Austin -	I purchased the one across the street that you have	
711	the laminated copy of.	,	
712	1,7		
713	Mr. Blankinship -	106 S. Confederate Avenue.	
714	·		
715	Mr. Austin -	I'm sorry. 106 S. Confederate. The family for this	
716	property across the street	came to me, asking me if I would like to purchase this	
717	property to keep the home	e from going into foreclosure on the family because of a	
718		viously I did what I thought to be my due diligence. But	
719		hat entire lot, by the time I put one house on it, it's just	
720	not going to be feasible. U	Infortunately, this is at the end of the street. There are a	

721 722 723 724	lot of children in the neighborhood. When you have a vacant lot there, it's an area where unwelcome elements tend to congregate. I'm trying to make this new again at the end of the street. With all due respect to the historical aspect, this house can't be saved.		
725 726 727 728	The two lots directly across from it, 106 South Confederate and the one next door are identical. Both did receive variances. I'm putting an identical-width house on the two lots.		
730 Mr. Blankinship - Just to clarify, you said both received variance.  731 100 South Confederate, the house was built in 1918 before the zoning place. At 106 South Confederate, that did receive a variance.			
733 734	Mr. Austin -	Correct. I apologize.	
735 736 737 738 739	Mr. Mackey - 1960. So anything built b would not need variances.	The zoning that he's speaking of came into effect in effore that would be grandfathered. So some of those	
740 741	Mr. Green - the left are on the same si	The house that I'm looking at now and the house on zed lots that you're trying to do across the street.	
742 743	Mr. Austin -	Identical.	
744 745 746 747	Mr. Blankinship - the same situation.	Yes. As far as the outcomes, yes, we are looking at	
748 749	Ms. Harris -	Mr. Austin, you purchased this in November 2017?	
Mr. Austin - Yes ma'am. As I was renovating this prop family that owned the vacant property across the street approached m this property with the intent of continuing to—. They saw what I was d this. I have gotten a lot of feedback from adjacent neighbors the appreciate the fact that we're trying to improve this end of the street. asked me to purchase this property, and I did so in November.		nt of continuing to—. They saw what I was doing with of feedback from adjacent neighbors that really ve're trying to improve this end of the street. So they	
756 757 758	Ms. Harris - require a variance when y	Okay. So you had total knowledge that this would ou purchased the land?	
759 760	Mr. Austin -	No ma'am, I did not.	
761 762 763 764		So your plan was when you purchased it to build two vate. I know you had reasons for not being able to urchased the land, did you plan to erect two structures?	

Mr. Austin -Let me say it this way. I've never applied for a building permit as a business. What I've done in the last fifteen years is 100 percent renovation. So my goal was to renovate this property. When I had taken the walls out and looked at the property, I found it cannot be saved. I've done dozens of properties. Unfortunately on this one—my heart breaks because I love to do this. I'd love to renovate it, but I can't. My fear is that with the cost associated with putting just one property . . . it's just not cost-feasible. I would probably have to vacate that and leave that there. I don't have any other options. 

So to answer your question, my intent was to renovate that property to a new state. And I found that the repairs are . . .

Ms. Harris - Now your intent is to what, to sell it and have someone else build on it? What is your intent now?

Mr. Austin - My intent is to put up a house that is identical in width and square footage, two houses, which is in here. There is a picture of the house. I didn't see it in the presentation, but there's a picture of the new construction house that I would like to put on each lot.

Ms. Harris - I understand that. But you said your business is to renovate, but yet you say you're going to erect two houses? So are you building?

Mr. Austin - Yes ma'am.

791 Ms. Harris - Okay.

Mr. Austin - I would build. And obviously there's a permitting process associated with that I'm familiar with. But again, my goal, whenever possible, is just to renovate. I'm not in the new construction business. But I have no other option but to put two new houses here that would obviously be put up by licensed contractors.

 Ms. Harris - Okay. And you do understand that this Board votes on a case-by-case basis? And you do understand that we have variance guidelines, and I don't think you meet any of them? You're really asking us to vacate the guidelines, the code, for the variance.

Mr. Austin - I understand the significance of what I'm asking you to do. In the interest of the neighborhood and this particular area at the end of the street that is difficult enough with the airport being there. But this other property has been purchased by an older couple that I hope will continue to bring stability to this neighborhood and act as good stewards for the neighborhood. So what I'm trying to do is the same thing here that was done across the street with the lots that are identical in size.

Ms. Harris -812 Okay. Have you priced the lot next to the dead-end street? Have you priced that? The one that has the oak trees on it and the 813 bamboo-814 815 The right-of-way? 816 Mr. Blankinship -817 Ms. Harris -The right-of-way, ves. 818 819 Mr. Austin -Honestly, as I a single employee, I wouldn't 820 understand the requirement to purchase a right-of-way. I'm sure there is a 821 bureaucratic process that has to take place in order for that to happen. And quite 822 honestly, I don't have the resources to pursue that. 823 824 825 Ms. Harris -But you don't know how much-826 Mr. Austin -I do know that the cost of improving that improved lot 827 with the substantial cost of eradicating the bamboo on it, which is also going to 828 be an issue on this property, which I can overcome with two homes as opposed 829 to one. But there are live oak trees. I know that they are over 100 years old. To 830 clear that entire lot would be a substantial cost, not to mention—if you'll go back 831 to the picture of the home, you'll see a twelve-foot privacy fence. I had no other 832 option but to put that privacy fence up. When the airport cut the other trees back 833 for me that were encumbering the roof, the noise level went up substantially. So 834 I'm really in fear of clearing that lot and having that noise level be a nuisance to 835 the neighborhood. 836 837 838 Ms. Harris -Don't you think the noise level is already a nuisance to the neighborhood? 839 840 Mr. Austin -Believe me, I'm in the risk business. I know what the 841 risk involvement is when renovating properties. I was very concerned with that, 842 which is why I put the twelve-foot privacy fence up. It basically just goes right 843 over top of the airport fence. 844 845 Mr. Mackey -Thank you, Mr. Austin. Yes, go ahead. 846 847 Mr. Bell -You've heard us say this three times, but I'm not 848 going to go over it again. We are restricted on this because of a code as to what 849 we can do. I'm a little confused when she was asking you your original intent and 850

851

852

853

854 855 what you're going to do now. If the house, like you said, which I truly believe, is

all disheveled and it had to go, and you decided for this old couple to build a new

house just there, we wouldn't be here. And yet now you're saying that you

couldn't build a house, but can build two. So I'm a little confused there.

856 857 858	Mr. Austin - the other home that was existing property—basicall	The purchase price for this home was half the price of going into foreclosure. So by the time I renovate the y, that's not an option.
859	Ţ., .	
860	Mr. Bell -	No, no, I didn't say that you could build another house
861 862		ld tear it down and build a house.
863	Mr. Austin -	Yes I could do that. But the cost of that when you
		st of demolition and the eradication of all the bamboo
864	<del>-</del>	
865	,	rd there. The cost of that is more substantial than what
866	•	one single property in that neighborhood for based on
867	•	roperties in the neighborhood. So it would exceed the
868	marketable value for the n	eighborhood.
869		
870	Mr. Bell -	Thank you.
871		,
872	Mr. Mackey -	All right. Thank you, Mr. Austin.
873	ivii. Wadney	7 iii righta Thank you, iiii. 7 tuotiii.
874	Mr. Green -	Question.
	Wil. Oreen -	Question.
875	Ma Maskau	Can Man Assatian
876	Mr. Mackey -	For Mr. Austin?
877		
878	Mr. Green -	For staff. How can we resolve this? I certainly
879	understand. I've been in the	hat business myself when you go and look at a house,
880	you just can't save it, and	it's just cost-prohibitive. Under normal circumstances I
881	could understand what we	e're trying to do. But if they've got two similar houses
882	across the street with the	e same width, same lot, what could be worked out.
883		ht-of-way? Does anybody know? Has anybody given
884	him the price of that?	give or way. Door anymony milent that anymony given
885	Thirt are price of that:	
886	Mr. Blankinship -	If the Board of Supervisors vacated the right-of-way,
	•	ally revert to this property without any cost at all. If that
887		, , , ,
888	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	ave enough land to create two buildable lots. The other
889		erty adjoining on the other side. If he could purchase
890		more land and he could come up to current standards
891	on both sides.	
892		
893	There is an application fe	e. And as he said, there is a bureaucratic process. It
894	does take some time to g	go through that. But it's a matter of I want to say six
895	weeks of so to get a case	like that on the Board's agenda.
896	9	Ŭ
897	Mr. Green -	So in other words, the Board of Supervisors would
898		ne other person that right-of-way. It would solve his
899	· •	build two houses. And it would alleviate us. Well that's

the solution. Why wouldn't you-

902 903	Mr. Austin - heard someone else say v	I heard somebody say I would have to purchase it. I we would give it away.	
904 905	Mr. Blankinship -	If a right-of-way is vacated, half of it goes to the	
906		h side. So half of it would go to you automatically. And	
907	the other half would auto	omatically revert to your neighbor. If you initiated the	
908	process, you could work s	something out with that neighbor that you would buy his	
909		uld do that, or you could just take your half. Even with	
910	• •	able to make two buildable lots. If you had both halves,	
911	•	meet the current standards. You could bring one lot up	
912		the other up to the current standards with just your half	
913	of the right-of-way. If you had both halves, you could build two lots at the current		
914	standards, which is eighty	feet of width.	
915			
916	Mr. Austin -	Right. But it would require that I negotiate with a	
917	neighbor to purchase.		
918			
919	Mr. Blankinship -	No. To get both of them, you'd have to buy his half.	
920	But you could still do what	t you want to do with just one half of the right-of-way.	
921			
922	Mr. Green -	What I'm hearing is that if you went to the County, the	
923	•	nd they granted the vacation, that means you would	
924	get		
925	M. Dissiliantia	Managed and transfer fact automotically like a factor	
926	Mr. Blankinship -	You would get twenty feet automatically. It's a forty-	
927	foot right-of-way.		
928	BAr Accetion	And there would be no cost associated with that?	
929	Mr. Austin -	And there would be no cost associated with that:	
930	Mr. Blankinship -	Just the cost of filing the application, which is a	
931 932	hundred dollars or someth		
933	Harlarea dollars or someti	ing, runik.	
934	Mr. Green -	So six weeks you get—	
935	W. Green	oo on wooke you got	
936	Mr. Austin -	If it was approved.	
937	Wil. Adduit	in a vac approved.	
938	Mr. Blankinship -	Right, yes. We can't guarantee that it would be	
939	approved.	January years and a second of	
940			
941	Mr. Austin -	Right. And I'm sure, as with this one, there would be a	
942	study done because of th	e noise problem of having to improve that lot. That's my	
943	fear there.		
944			
945	Mr. Blankinship -	The main factor, though, is the Berry Street is never	
946	going to be extended. It	dead-ends into the airport. There's no reason to think	
947	that it would ever be exter	nded.	

948		A STATE OF THE STA
949	Mr. Green -	I would surmise that because you're putting two new
950		generating taxes and revenue and sale prices versus
951		t's unable to be renovated, I would go that route if it's
952	only \$100.	
953		
954	Mr. Blankinship -	I'm not sure about the hundred dollar figure. It's in
955	that range.	
956		
957	Mr. Austin -	But then the cost of improving that lot and the cost of
958		y. In my opinion, it's the identical house to the lots
959	•	which there's precedent there that it was granted a
960	variance.	
961	Ma Ossassa	D. Alice account account on the Decard on Participan Ac-
962	Mr. Green -	I'm the newest person on the Board, so I'm trying to
963	, , ,	self. As they're saying, we really can't do that. So while
964		hat you're trying to do, and I see what you're saying,
965	, ,	ning, I also have to follow the rules. Your only option, to
966		with trying to acquire that land from the county. If I'm a
967	•	not want you to build two properties that will be
968	generating taxes and rever	nues and improving the neighborhood?
969	Man Acception	Mould that request he heard by the same Deard?
970	Mr. Austin -	Would that request be heard by the same Board?
971	Several -	No.
972	Several -	INO.
973	Mr. Green -	The Board of Supervisors. I would think that if you're
974 975		m that I have a dilapidated piece of property there that
973		it, it's just going to sit there, versus giving me that
977		oing to improve the neighborhood substantially, I don't
978		push back on that. The only thing that it's going to
979	require from you is time.	push back on that. The only thing that it's going to
980	require from you is time.	
981	Mr. Austin -	Well time and money. I don't know what would be
982		ning, but basically now you're taking two lots that are
983		ney're 60.01 feet. Now they're going to be 65 feet. So
984	-	e moved over, and I'm sure that there's a plot that has
985		ever licensing requirements. Again, I'm one person.
986		
987	Mr. Mackey -	I don't want to cut you short, but you're going to kind
988	•	nty and get a few more tips on what you can possibly
989	do. We have a lot more car	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
990		
991	Mr. Green -	That's what I was going to recommend. Is there
992		that can explain to him the process?

)	994 995 996	Mr. Blankinship - and we'll continue to do so	We've been meeting with him and talking with	him,
	997 998	Mr. Austin -	Thank you.	
	999 1000 1001 1002	-	Thank you, Mr. Austin. Is there anyone here apport of the application? Anyone who would like the can we hear our next application, please?	
	1003 1004 1005	-	the public hearings, the Board discussed the This portion of the transcript is included here e.]	
	1006 1007 1008 1009 1010 1011 1012 1013	magistrate, I think it would with a new home. I don't the would create two more we would keep him from have	What is the pleasure of the Board? Being the Value a good thing if the applicant could improve the bear a situation when the applicant has other options a variance. Having said that, I may be policant's request for the variance.	ne lot e we that
	1014	Mr. Green -	Second.	
)	1015 1016 1017	Mr. Mackey -	It's been moved and seconded. Is there discussion	n?
	1018 1019 1020	Ms. Harris - owner can pursue. So hop	Yes. I think the report gives different choices that efully he will try at least one of those.	t this
	1020 1021 1022 1023 1024	Mr. Mackey - been moved and properly Those opposed say no. Th	Okay, thank you. Any other discussion? Okay seconded. All in favor to deny the application say a le ayes have it 5 to 0.	
	1025 1026 1027 1028 1029 1030 1031	Mr. Green, the Board DEVELOPMENT INC.'s re County Code to build a	hearing and on a motion by Mr. Mackey seconder denied application VAR2018-00003, MERIC equest for a variance from Section 24-95(b)(5) of one-family dwelling at 101 S Confederate Av715-9922) zoned One-Family Residence District (	of the enue
	1032 1033 1034 1035 1036	Affirmative: Negative: Absent:	Bell, Green, Harris, Mackey, Reid 5 0 0	
	1037 1038 1039	Mr. Mackey - which is VAR2018-00004.	The next case is the second lot adjoining that It's the same argument, that the two lots are no	

each other and the variance would make a big enough lot to build the first home. 1040 Having said that, my argument is the same. I don't think that it meets the subtest 1041 to receive a variance, so I make a motion that we deny VAR2018-00004. Is there 1042 a second? 1043 1044 Mr. Green -So moved. 1045 1046 Mr. Mackey -It's been moved and seconded. Discussion? No 1047 discussion. All in favor of denying the variance say aye. Any opposed? The ayes 1048 have it, the motion carries, and the variance is denied. 1049 1050 After an advertised public hearing and on a motion by Mr. Mackey seconded by 1051 Mr. Green, the Board denied application VAR2018-00004, MERIDIAN 1052 **DEVELOPMENT INC.'s** request for a variance from Section 24-95(b)(5) of the 1053 County Code to build a one-family dwelling at 103 S Confederate Avenue 1054 (SANDSTON) (Parcel 825-715-9922) zoned One-Family Residence District (R-3) 1055 (Varina). 1056 1057 1058 Affirmative: Bell, Green, Harris, Mackey, Reid 5 1059 Negative: 0 1060 O Absent: 1061 1062 1063 [At this point, the transcript continues with the public hearing on the next 1064 case.1 1065 1066 VAR2018-00005 MARK REMPE requests a variance from Section 24-1067 94 of the County Code to build a one-family dwelling at 6099 Old Lafrance Road 1068 (Parcels 834-706-5793 and 834-708-8616) zoned Agricultural District (A-1) 1069 (Varina). The lot width requirement is not met. The applicant proposes 104 feet 1070 1071 lot width, where the Code requires 150 feet lot width. The applicant requests a variance of 46 feet lot width. 1072 1073 Mr. Blankinship -Would everyone who intends to speak to this case 1074 1075 please stand and be sworn in. Raise your right hands, please. Do you swear the testimony you're about to give is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the 1076 truth so help you God? Thank you. Mr. Gidley? 1077 1078 Mr. Gidley -Thank you, Mr. Secretary. Members of the Board, 1079 good morning. At your desk, you should have a letter from the Carl family that 1080 1081 was provided. That was the letter of opposition to this case. 1082 This is a request for a lot-width variance for property located near the intersection 1083 of LaFrance Road and Interstate 295. The subject property contains just over 1084

1085

one half of an acre of land and is the remnant of a larger portion that was

acquired by VDOT for the construction of Interstate 295. It is owned by Mr. Michael McQuade, who also owns an eighteen-acre parcel to the rear. This is the subject property here. As I said, this is the eighteen-acre parcel here that he also owns. This is a picture of Old LaFrance Road where it terminates, and then the subject property is on the left side here. Through the trees you can see Interstate 295.

The property is zoned A-1, Agricultural District, which requires a minimum lot area of one acre and a minimum lot width of 150 feet. Because Mr. McQuade owns both of these lots, he can adjust the common lot line to make this half-acre lot a one-acre lot that meets the lot area requirement. However, that would not assist with the lot-width issue. The property here has 104 feet of lot width and 150 is required. Because of the interstate located here, and this lot to the west here which has limited width as well, he does not have the ability to acquire additional land to meet code for the lot width requirement.

A variance was granted back in 2010 for lot width, but this has expired. So today the new applicant, Mr. Rempe, is applying for a second variance for lot width on this property.

In the evaluation, does the Zoning Ordinance unreasonably restrict the use of the property. Prior of the acquisition of this land by VDOT for Interstate 295, the property complied with lot width and area. After the construction of the interstate, however, it no longer complied with either of these. Again, the property owner can adjust the lot line to provide the required lot area, but he has no option for the width. As a result, the applicant would lack a reasonable beneficial use of the property absent a variance being granted.

As far as the five subtests are concerned, the applicant acquired the property in good faith from VDOT back in 2008, and he is not responsible for the hardship.

Substantial detrimental impact on nearby property. The applicant is proposing to construct this two-story, 1,440-square-foot home. It would have vinyl siding and a brick foundation on the front of the home and concrete on the remaining foundation sides. Given the semi-rural residential character of the surrounding area, the proposed dwelling should not pose a substantial detriment to the nearby property.

I will note, however, that staff has received several phone calls from people nearby who are opposed to the variance, I think part of this is because last year the land to the rear was the site of a proposed sober living facility that was eventually withdrawn. And I think there is some concern that this is a continuation of that rather than a separate case, which today's case is a separate case. There has also been some opposition expressed due to this lot being smaller and narrower than what typically is found in the area.

As far as the condition of the property being addressed through an ordinance 1132 amendment, variances for lot width are fairly common. The Board heard seven 1133 such requests last year. The events that led to this situation are unusual, and 1134 they're not easily addressed by an amendment to the ordinance. 1135 1136 A one-family dwelling is a permitted use in the A-1 District, so this is not a use 1137 variance. 1138 1139 And finally, a special exception or modification is not an option in this case. 1140 1141 In conclusion, the property was acquired in good faith by the applicant. Absent a 1142 variance, it would lack a reasonable, beneficial use due to the lack of lot width. 1143 The proposed dwelling that you see here should not pose a substantial detriment 1144 to nearby property. Because of this and the fact that the remaining subtests are 1145 met, staff recommends approval of this request subject to the conditions found in 1146 your staff report. 1147 1148 This concludes my presentation, and I will be happy to answer any questions you 1149 may have. Thank you. 1150 1151 Thank you, Mr. Gidley. Are there any questions from Mr. Mackey -1152 the Board or from staff for Mr. Gidley? 1153 1154 Mr. Gidley, what type of business or building did they Ms. Harris -1155 want to construct in previous years that makes them a little leery of this project? 1156 1157 Last year, some of this land back here, along with a Mr. Gidley -1158 parcel further west that abuts it that's owned by Mr. McQuade as well, was 1159 proposed, as I recall, to have several buildings on it that would have served as a 1160 sober living facility for people who are recovering from addiction. Due to several 1161 issues in constructing this and providing utilities to the site, it was eventually 1162 withdrawn. There was a lot of opposition to that from nearby residences. When 1163 the sign came out on the road in the same basic area, I think there was a 1164 concern that hey, this is this coming back. But as I've noted here, this is a 1165 request to construct the single-family dwelling that was shown to you. 1166 1167 Any other questions from Mr. Gidley? All right, thank Mr. Mackey -1168 you. Can we hear from the applicant? 1169 1170 Mr. Gidley -Thank you, Mr. Chair. 1171

Mr. Rempe -

1172

1173

1174

1175

1176

staff. My name is Mark Rempe (R-e-m-p-e). I'm with Emerald Land Development.

We concur with staff's findings on approving the variance. We appreciate staff's

time. We've met all the tests. The variance was approved before. The house

Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Board members, and

	1177 1178 1179		rill conform with the neighborhood, with all the other ellings. I'm here to answer any of the questions.
	1180 1181 1182	Mr. Mackey - seen the conditions of the	All right. Mr. Rempe, if it were approved, have you approval and agree with all six of them?
	1182 1183 1184	Mr. Rempe -	Yes.
	1185 1186	•	You're not in any way affiliated with the previous peaking of, the sober living?
	1187 1188 1189	Mr. Rempe - homebuyers.	No sir, no sir. The spec house will be sold to some
	1190 1191 1192	Mr. Blankinship - contract at this time?	You said it was a spec house? You don't have a
	1193 1194 1195 1196	Mr. Rempe - homebuyer.	We don't have a contract, but it will be a first-time
	1196 1197 1198	Mr. Mackey -	Okay. Any other questions for Mr. Rempe?
)	1199 1200 1201 1202 1203		Mr. Rempe, do you know what else could be hind this one we're considering now? If this house is t of this property? Do you know what else could be
	1204 1205	Mr. Rempe - family residential houses.	I do not. There's probably just going to be single- That's what I would think.
	1206 1207 1208	Ms. Harris -	But there is no public right-of-way, right?
	1209 1210 1211	Mr. Rempe - would have to create so property.	Yes, there is no public right-of-way back there. They ome kind of roadway going through a neighboring
	1212 1213 1214	Ms. Harris -	Do you foresee a subdivision?
	1215 1216 1217	Mr. Rempe - Plan, and based upon wha	I do not know. But based upon the Comprehensive at's out there, that seems very reasonable.
	1217 1218 1219	Mr. Green -	Do you own that property back there?
	1220 1221	Mr. Rempe -	I do not.
	1222	Mr. Green -	So you can't speak to what—

1223							
1224	Mr. Rempe -	I can't. I'	'm just	speculating	based	on	the
1225	Comprehensive Plan and V	vhat's out the	ere.				
1226	•						
1227	Mr. Green -	Even if som	ething we	re to be done,	it would	still h	ave
1228	to come back before this B	oard.					
1229							
1230	Mr. Mackey -	Absolutely.					
1231	•	•					
1232	Mr. Green -	So the only	concern	that we have	is this o	ne ca	ase.
1233	And what's going to happe	en back ther	e, until it's	s brought to u	s, it's nor	ne of	our
1234	business. If it's not his.		,	Ü	•		
1235							
1236	Mr. Rempe -	Yes sir.					
1237	•						
1238	Mr. Gidley -	If I could, Mi	r. Green. t	hat's a good p	oint that	vou b	ring
1239	up. Mr. McQuade also owi					•	_
1240	chose to develop it as a	•		•			-
1241	access the property right		•				
1242	perhaps they would be cutting off their only source of access. But because the						
1243	same property owner also	-	•				
1244	concern, if that's where you						
1245	,	<b>J</b>					
1246	Mr. Green -	No. My cond	cern is tha	t we're dealing	with just	that	one
1247	little piece right there. To	•		•			
1248	something that hasn't bee						
1249	not our business at this po	_			•		
1250	to develop that back par		•	•	•	_	_
1251	potentially has to come ba						
1252	correct or incorrect?						
1253							
1254	Mr. Blankinship -	Yes sir, abso	olutely.				
1255	•		•				
1256	Ms. Harris -	The reason	I asked h	im that question	on is beca	ause	you
1257	have people who are op	posing this	particular	case. Listeni	ng to Mr	. Gid	lley,
1258	maybe they're opposing it	because the	y suspect	that another :	sober livir	ng fac	cility
1259	is going to be constructed	on the prop	erty behi	nd the land th	at we are	dea	ling
1260	with. So if we can flush i	t out now le	t's do it, l	because it's a	part of	the le	egal
1261	proceedings. If it goes to	the Circuit (	Court, it's	all documente	ed. If thin	gs co	ome
1262	back, we do have that to re	ly on.				_	
1263							
1264	Mr. Green -	But Mr. Gidl	ley has an	ticulated that y	ou don't	own	that
1265	land behind it that was pro-	oosed for the	sober livi	ng.			
1266							
1267	Ms. Harris -	Yes, right no	ow.				
1268		_					

	1269	Mr. Green -	And not only has he articulated that, but the owns it. If it's not him, then he can't speak for it.
	1270	documentation shows who	owns it. If it's not him, then he can't speak for it.
	1271	Mr. Gidley -	Mr. McQuade owns it, so you're correct that the
	1272		r the future use of Mr. McQuade's parcel. It's only for
	1273	• •	it the luture use of Mr. McQuade's parcel. It's only for
	1274	this site up front here.	
	1275	Mr. Green -	The other point is he would be impacted just as the
	1276		r living facility was put back there. So I'm not going to
	1277		out that, because he's just only dealing with that one
	1278		eets the conditions then you talk about time. I don't
	1279	want to get into speculative	•
	1280	want to get into speculative	e Stuff.
	1281	Mo Harria	One question Mr. Cidley. The let we're decline with
	1282	Ms. Harris -	One question, Mr. Gidley. The lot we're dealing with
	1283	today is undevelopable if v	ve do not approve this variance?
	1284	0: "	Vicinity I are the second for the second for addition
	1285	Mr. Gidley -	Yes ma'am, because it lacks the required lot width,
	1286	and there are no options to	o obtain additional land.
	1287		
	1288	Ms. Harris -	Thank you.
	1289		
	1290	Mr. Mackey -	All right. Thank you, sir. Are there any questions for
	1291	the applicant?	
	1292		
	1293	Mr. Bell -	Real quickly. Has your company received any
	1294	complaints from the neigh	bors?
	1295		
	1296	Mr. Rempe -	I have not.
	1297	·	
	1298	Mr. Bell -	Okay, thank you.
	1299		
	1300	Mr. Mackey -	We have a letter. All right. Thank you, Mr. Rempe.
	1301	•	
	1302	Mr. Rempe -	Thank you.
	1303	·	·
	1304	Mr. Mackey -	Is there anyone here who would like to speak in
	1305		? All right. Is there anyone who would like to speak in
	1306	opposition of it? Please co	
	1307		
	1308	Ms. Fore -	I have concerns about—
	1309		
	1310	Mr. Mackey -	Excuse me, ma'am. For the record, we need you to
	1311	state and spell your name	
	1312	ciate and open your name	
_	1313	Ms. Fore -	My name is Barbara Fore (F-o-r-e)
	1314	100 -	my hame to barbara to to troy
	1314		

1315	Mr. Mackey -	All right. Thank you, Ms. Fore.
1316 1317 1318 1319 1320 1321	house. We call them drug	My concern is what if Mr. McQuade were to approach hat house and use it for a drug house—a drug rehab houses. But for rehab. We know there's a need, but we are already been problems on LaFrance Road as a property now
1322	Todak of the modes on that	reporty new
1323	Mr. Green -	With all due respect, Ms. Fore—
1324 1325 1326	Ms. Fore -	I live on the same side of the road, 6041.
1327 1328	Mr. Green - quadruple the price?	What happens if they approach you and double or
1329 1330 1331	Ms. Fore -	Approach me?
1332 1333 1334	Mr. Green - array of individuals where sober living facility. Correc	No, I'm just saying that scenario could happen with an e they may want to purchase property and turn it into a ct?
1335 1336 1337	Ms. Fore -	I don't know.
1338 1339 1340		Ms. Fore, I'm pretty sure—we can check with staff, denter a whole different realm of ordinances and to turn a residential house into a sober living home.
1341 1342 1343	Mr. Blankinship - of lot width in lieu of 150 fo	The question before the Board concerns the 104-feet eet of lot width.
1344 1345	Mr. Green -	I understand.
1346 1347 1348 1349	Ms. Fore - house that he builds is go better than me.	Thank you. I was just concerned I guess what the bing to be used for. Somebody else might to explain it
1350 1351	Mr. Green -	He just stated that it's going to be a single-family use.
1352 1353 1354 1355	Mr. Blankinship - to a first-time homeowne business he's been in for	His statement on the record was that it would be sold r. Mr. Rempe is familiar to this Board, and that's the some time.
1356 1357	Ms. Fore -	Which could be Mr. McQuade.
1358 1359 1360	Mr. Blankinship - Mr. McQuade already owr	If he's a first-time homebuyer, then yes. I don't know if as a home.

h	1361
	1362

Ms. Fore - Thank you.

Mr. Mackey - Thank you, Ms. Fore. Is there anyone else who would like to speak in opposition?

Ms. Barbara Moore - Good morning, my name is Barbara Moore (M-o-o-re). We are a rural community down there. We have a very nice area where you have a lot of space between each home. We do not want to see our little rural community become a congested neighborhood with houses one on top of the other one. We feel that if this variance is allowed, then down the road, how many other people are going to say, "Well hey, I can sell some of my land and squeeze another house in here as well." So we are just very concerned.

And yes, he brought up the past. The past has come to mind. Besides, if this is going to be sold as a single-family dwelling, who would like to buy a single-family dwelling—thinking of it being their first home, who would like to buy next door or very, very close to a sober living home, particularly when you have children? I cannot say for sure, but I have been told that there are also sex offenders in this home now. That is definitely not something that if I were to buy a new home to start with my family that I would want next door to me.

Mr. Blankinship - Are you saying the home next door is currently used as a sober living facility?

Ms. Barbara Moore - Correct.

Mr. Green - So that is a sober living facility, and that's next to—

Ms. Barbara Moore - Right next to where they propose to build this home. As to what's there, I cannot say. We were told that they have to be residents there for one month. Well, going up and down the road, you will see different vehicles there. But I have never been aware of seeing a vehicle there for any length of time. I'm not going to knock on the door and ask how long have you lived here or how long do you plan to live here.

We want to keep our neighborhood, our little country road neighborhood a nice place to raise our families. We have lots of young couples with new babies. In fact, we have two babies under a year old on this road now. We want safety for our children. Most of the people bought down there because they have space that the children can play. We just don't want to see it come up where you have a house—no offense to the gentleman that was ahead of us. Their houses are right on top of each other. We like space down there, and that's the way our setting looks.

1406 1407	Mr. Green - show me where that sober	A staff question. From this perspective, could you rliving house is?
1408 1409 1410 1411 1412		It's right in the middle of the screen there. It is a little aerial photo. I guess there are trees over top of it. The
1413 1414 1415	Mr. Green - are their houses?	The individuals that are speaking before us, where
1416 1417 1418	•	I believe Ms. Moore, if I'm not mistaken, lives a little ad on the other side of the interstate.
1419 1420	Ms. Barbara Moore -	I live on the other side of the interstate.
1421 1422 1423	Mr. Blankinship - direction on LaFrance Roa	And Ms. Fore, who spoke previously, is the opposite ad to the west.
1424 1425 1426	Ms. Barbara Moore - sir.	Ms. Fore lives much closer to it than what I do, yes
1427 1428 1429 1430	Mr. Green - take that property behind to come before us again?	My other question to staff is if someone wanted to this house and build more sober living, it would have to
1431 1432 1433 1434 1435 1436 1437	single-family dwelling is of occupied by a group of pofederal fair housing law.	It would depend on how it was designed. Once a created, it can be occupied by a family or it can be eople who live together as a family. That's a matter of We cannot discriminate whether the people who live in birth, marriage or adoption, or whether they just agree together as a family.
1438 1439 1440	Mr. Mackey - if—	His question was the property behind. He was saying
1441 1442 1443	Mr. Green - The property behind it. The that would have to come be	To bring some comfort to the individuals speaking. hen the property that he owns, which is undeveloped, eack before us?
1444 1445 1446 1447 1448 1449	come back to this Board. subdivision of the property	Not if he built a public street to the public street back a subdivision with additional houses that would not That would go through the Planning Commission. The would be reviewed by the Planning Commission. This there is already an existing lot that cannot be used.

D	1451 1452 1453	Mr. Mackey - Mr. Rempe.	Right. Thank you. I have a follow-up question for
	1454 1455	Ms. Barbara Moore - hear. Would you speak up	And I'm sorry, sir. I'm hard of hearing, and I can't?
	1456 1457 1458	Mr. Mackey -	Ms. Harris has a question for you.
	1459 1460	Ms. Barbara Moore -	Oh, okay.
	1461 1462 1463 1464	Ms. Harris - would be constructed on picture of the house?	Ms. Moore, did you see the picture of the house that this lot? Did you see the picture? May we see the
	1465 1466	Ms. Barbara Moore -	Yes ma'am, I saw the picture.
	1467 1468 1469 1470 1471	or not the sober living factorer what's going to happe	Okay. Do you think that would be an improvement now? For example, we have no jurisdiction of whether sility is there or not there. But we do have jurisdiction en now with this particular house. Do you think that this in the neighborhood rather than the opposite?
0	1473 1474		Well I can't see it being an improvement to the g to continue getting houses on top of each other.
	1475 1476 1477 1478 1479 1480	would think that this wou	Right. I drove down there I think it was Tuesday sharp turn there, and you go to the end of the street. I ald be an improvement over—the wooded area, it's nion, but I don't know if that's the way you feel about it. The road is a dead end.
	1481 1482 1483 1484	Ms. Barbara Moore - end. When they rerouted little short section.	That little Old LaFrance Road, yes ma'am, it's a dead LaFrance Road when they did 295, it became just a
	1485 1486 1487	Ms. Harris - improvement over the woo	Right. And you don't think the house would be an ded lot?
	1488 1489 1490	Ms. Barbara Moore -	No.
	1491 1492	Ms. Harris -	You do not?
	1493 1494	Ms. Barbara Moore -	I'm sorry. Would you repeat that?
	1495 1496	Ms. Harris - improvement over the woo	You don't think that the two-story house would be an ided lot that's at the dead end of the street right now?

1497	Ms. Barbara Moore -	No ma'am, I do not, because that's what we like. We
1498	like the country setting.	No ma am, 1 do not, because that's what we like. We
1499 1500	ike the country setting.	
	Ms. Harris -	Okay. Thank you.
1501 1502	IVIS. Hallis -	Okay. Hidik you.
1502	Mr. Bell -	The house that we were talking about that you
1504		rehabilitation, how long has that house been there, do
1504	you know?	Teriabilitation, now long has that house been there, do
1506	you know:	
1507	Ms. Barbara Moore -	How long has the house that is a sober living been
1508	there?	They long had the house that to a coper him g seen
1509		
1510	Mr. Bell -	Yes.
1511		. 55.
1512	Ms. Barbara Moore -	My husband might could answer that. I've been down
1513		nd that house was there when I got there. But it was not
1514	a sober living home then.	
1515	3	
1516	Mr. Blankinship -	The house was built in 1948, but I don't know how
1517	long it's been used as it is	today.
1518	J	•
1519	Ms. Barbara Moore -	But it's only been, I think, a sober living house for
1520	what, maybe a year. If a y	vear even. I'm not sure that it's even been that use for a
1521	year.	
1522		
1523	Mr. Moore -	My name is Raymond W. Moore (M-o-o-r-e). I've
1524		d a little over eighty-three years. I had a house right
1525		) feet further back, and they moved it out toward the
1526		use a right-of-way to come out there, what keeps him
1527		y in there and starting to build houses right on top of
1528		y why don't you move? You don't leave a good
1529		people. If you move in that neighborhood, I'm going to
1530	, ,	cick, you need your grass cut, I'll cut your grass. I don't
1531	want to see a bunch of hill	raff come in there and ruin our neighborhood.
1532	Mr. Mackey -	Thank you Mr. Moore, Any questions for Mr. Moore?
1533	IVII. IVIackey -	Thank you, Mr. Moore. Any questions for Mr. Moore?
1534 1535	Mr. Green -	I guess that we have to kind of resolve your fear of
1536		ppen versus what is actually happening. We can't get
1537		ntially happen in the future. We have to deal with what's
1538	happening currently.	many happen in the latere. We have to deal with what's
1539	speciming durionity.	
1540	Ms. Barbara Moore -	I understand that, sir. And that's why we would like for
1541		r community to stay a rural-looking neighborhood and
1542	_	of the other. We feel that if they get to do this then

somebody else is going to come along and think they can squeeze in another house. Some of these houses do have good road frontage. They could think of the possibility that they could sell off a strip or build a house and rent it and sell the house. We just love our rural community.

Mr. Blankinship - This Board would not approve a creation of a new lot that did not meet the standards. The reason this case is ever before us is before this lot already exists.

1552 Ms. Barbara Moore - But they could come before another board and get approval.

1555 Mr. Blankinship - The property could be subdivided, but there are zoning ordinances and subdivision regulations that would require the size of lots, the width of lots. They would have to all meet the regulations. Any new lot that's being created has to meet the regulations.

Ms. Barbara Moore - We just love our rural community setting, and we would like to see it stay that way.

1563 Mr. Blankinship - Yes ma'am.

Mr. Mackey - All right. Thank you. Are there any other questions for Ms. Moore? Thank you, Ms. Moore. Is there anyone else who would like to speak in opposition? Please come down, sir.

Mr. Crostic - Good morning. My name is Ray Crostic (C-r-o-s-t-i-c).
I do not live on LaFrance Road. I'm about a mile, maybe a mile and a half away.
All these people are my friends; I've known them for all my life. The only reason
I'm here this morning is because I'd like to know—can I ask this gentleman how
he became aware of this specific piece of property?

1575 Mr. Blankinship - We can ask him that, but what would be the relevance of that?

Mr. Crostic - I'm like Mrs. Moore. I'd like to know if he builds his house, and a family moves in here, are they going to be made aware of what's right next door to them? I know we're not here for that reason. But there is a concern. I was at the meeting last year in Sandston when two or three hundred residents were there. The man supposedly dropped the idea of developing this land for this rehab facility. I do go through there quite often. I do see individuals walking the roads that are not residents in the area. I have no facts that that's where they live, but my assumption is it is. There's a resident right next door that has complained several times to the police department—on the left-hand side of this property—that they've been harassed by these people.

1589 1590 1591 1592	My concern is with as much property as there is in the area, why this piece of property? To be bought and build a house on it right next door to this rehab? So I don't have the right to ask this gentleman?		
1593 1594 1595	Mr. Blankinship - rebuttal, and we can ask h	We can ask him that. He will have an opportunity for im that question.	
1596 1597 1598 1599 1600	decides he wants to buy	Okay. That was my question. Again, like Mrs. Moore and the gentleman that owns this adjacent property it I know I don't have any facts. It's just things neads of what might take place. That's all I have.	
1601 1602	Mr. Blankinship -	Thank you.	
1603 1604 1605 1606 1607	anybody else like to speak to come back to the podiu	Any questions for Mr. Crostic? Thank you, sir. Would in opposition? At this time, I'd like to ask Mr. Rempe m, please. I have a question. Were you aware that the a sober living facility or home?	
1607 1608 1609	Mr. Rempe -	No, I was not.	
1610 1611	Mr. Mackey -	You were not.	
1612 1613 1614 1615 1616 1617	everyone knows, there are don't, you don't. So we fee your position. This is goin	I would like to point out that, you know, a variance is a see have met our tests and our obligation here. As a certain tests. If you meet them, you meet them; if you set that we've met the tests. We understand and respect g to be a large lot, so it's going to have the feel of a g the lot width requirement. That's all.	
1619 1620	Ms. Harris - Mr. Crostic posed? How di	Mr. Rempe, can you answer the question that d you learn of this property?	
1621 1622 1623 1624	Mr. Rempe - bought the property. I think	It was for sale on the MLS, so anybody could have this property's been up for sale for a long time.	
1625 1626 1627	Mr. Mackey - you. Can we have the next	Any other questions for Mr. Rempe? All right. Thank applicant?	
1628 1629 1630 1631	-	the public hearings, the Board discussed the case This portion of the transcript is included here for e.]	
1632 1633 1634		What is the pleasure of the Board? I am the Varina tough case. Having heard what many of the neighbors eel the concerns. But the applicant has met the five	

subtests in order to receive a variance, so there's really nothing under the code that we can do to deny them. Having said that, I make a motion that we grant the variance for VAR2018-00005. Is there a second?

Mr. Green - So moved.

Mr. Mackey - Okay, it's been moved and seconded. Discussion?

Ms. Harris - Yes. I think the neighbors do have a problem, but I think that they're going to have to address that problem. If the sober living facility is not meeting standards, I think they need to address that problem. Get other people involved in it. I don't think that we are indifferent to problems of this nature. But as far as this case I concerned, I think the subtests have been met.

Mr. Mackey - Any other discussion?

Mr. Bell - Yes, very briefly. I am also very understanding about all the concerns presented to us by the property owners. Fortunately, on some of their problems, in order for it to happen it has to come back through us. In that case, they'll be looked at again. Unfortunately, we act on what we know, what the facts are, not the speculations. And yet if you have a piece of property, you speculate on a lot of things, whether too much snow is going to get on your roof and cause it to break, whether you want to stay rural and you find that a subdivision has moved in. There is not much you can do without breaching the code. But I understand, and I just wanted to say that. I think all of us up here understand it. But as was already said, what we know is what we rule on, and that's what we did. Thank you.

Mr. Mackey - Any other discussion? All right, it's been moved and seconded. All in favor of granting the variance say aye. Any opposed? The ayes have it, and the motion is carried 5 to 0.

After an advertised public hearing and on a motion by Mr. Mackey, seconded by Mr. Green, the Board **approved** application **VAR2018-00005**, **MARK REMPE** requests a variance from Section 24-94 of the County Code to build a one-family dwelling at 6099 Old Lafrance Rd (Parcels 834-706-5793 and 834-708-8616) zoned Agricultural District (A-1). The Board approved the variance subject to the following conditions:

1. This variance applies only to the lot width requirement for one dwelling only. All other applicable regulations of the County Code shall remain in force.

2. Only the improvements shown on the building design filed with the application may be constructed pursuant to this approval. Any additional improvements shall comply with the applicable regulations of the County Code. Any substantial

1680 changes or additions to the design or location of the improvements will require a new variance.

3. Approval of this request does not imply that a building permit will be issued. Building permit approval is contingent on Health Department requirements, including, but not limited to, soil evaluation for a septic drainfield and reserve area, and approval of a well location.

4. Clearing, grading, or other land disturbing activity shall not begin until the applicant has submitted, and the Department of Public Works has approved, an environmental compliance plan.

 5. Prior to the approval of a building permit, the property owner shall adjust the lot line between the property (GPIN 834-706-5793) and Parcel 834-708-8616, in order to ensure the property contains at least one acre of lot area. The remainder of Parcel 834-708-8616 shall be consolidated with Parcel 834-707-5482.

6. A street sign and post for Old LaFrance Road shall be installed by the applicant prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy. Signs for non-maintained rights-of-way shall have a blue background (#3M product # 1175C or approved equivalent) with white letter(#4090 or approved equivalent).

1703 Affirmative: Bell, Green, Harris, Mackey, Reid 5
1704 Negative: 0
1705 Absent: 0

[At this point, the transcript continues with the public hearing on the next case.]

VAR2018-00006 SHURM HOMES requests a variance from Section 24-94 of the County Code to build a one-family dwelling at 3789 Darbytown Place (Parcel 827-692-6694) zoned Agricultural District (A-1) (Varina). The lot width requirement is not met. The applicant proposes 135 feet lot width, where the Code requires 150 feet lot width. The applicant requests a variance of 15 feet lot width.

1718 Mr. Blankinship - Would everyone who intends to speak to this case please stand and be sworn in. Mr. Rempe is still under oath. No one else? All right, Mr. Gidley, you may begin.

1722 Mr. Gidley - Thank you again, Mr. Secretary, members of the Board.

This is also a request for a lot-width variance, this time for property located near the intersection of Interstate 295 and Darbytown Road. The history of this property is a little bit complicated. The original site was roughly seven acres, but when Interstate 295 was put in, Darbytown Road was relocated. It ended up splitting the seven-acre tract. To the north of Darbytown Road, you had a 3.1-acre parcel, which included this parcel here and the one that is the subject to today's request. It contained 3.1 acres and had adequate lot width on Darbytown Road.

In 1995, the owner of the property divided the property. That created two parcels, one that met code here on Darbytown. Unfortunately, in dividing the property, it created a second parcel here that did not have the required lot width. This parcel has 137 feet of lot width on Darbytown Place rather than the required 150 feet.

Following the division in 1995, the owner at the time applied for and obtained a variance in 1996. Sweet Homes subsequently acquired the property before selling it to the current owner in 1997. The original variance eventually expired, and the new owner applied for and received a second variance for lot width in 2007. This has also expired. Today, Shurm Homes and Mark Rempe have applied for what's essentially the third lot-width variance on this property. This would allow for the construction of a single-family dwelling on the parcel.

This is the view of the property from Darbytown Place. As you can see here, it's fairly level and open right here. Once you get to the wooded area behind it, it does slope down significantly, and there are environmental constraints in the back.

As far as the evaluation of the variance, does the Zoning Ordinance unreasonably restrict the utilization of the property? In this case, again it shouldn't have been created, but the reality as it stands right now is you have a large area up front here where a home could be developed. Yet absent a variance, a home could not be developed on the property due to the lack of adequate lot width.

 As far as the five subtests are concerned, when the current owner, Mr. Kenney, acquired the property in 1997, a variance was still in effect on the property. He did not create the hardship, and he purchased the property in good faith with a reasonable expectation that it was a buildable lot, due to the variance that was in effect at the time. This is the property right here in front of you, and this is looking across the street at some adjacent homes.

When it comes to any detrimental impact on nearby property, the proposed use of this property is a one-family dwelling. As you can see, it's consistent with the properties in the area. Staff, however, has not received any information from the applicant regarding the proposed dwelling for this specific property. The adjacent homes, as you can see, are a mix of vinyl and brick siding, and they also have

brick foundations on four sides. They range in area from 1,302 square feet up to 2,208 square feet. Assuming the new home will be of similar design, it should not pose a substantial detrimental impact on nearby property.

As far as an ordinance amendment to resolve this issue, variances for lack of lot width are fairly common. Again, you heard seven such requests last year, and you just heard one a moment ago. The events that led to this situation are unusual and are not easily addressed by an amendment to the Zoning Ordinance. This is not a use variance because the property is zoned A-1, Agricultural, and a one-family dwelling is a permitted use in that district.

And finally, a special exception or modification is not an option in this case.

In conclusion, allowing a home to be constructed would provide a beneficial use for the property. Although the parcel should not have been created, the current owner was not responsible for its creation and purchased it in good faith. There have also been two previous variances approved here. Since the remaining subtests are also met, assuming the home's design is compatible with nearby property, staff can recommend approval of the request subject to the conditions in the staff report.

This concludes my presentation. If you have any questions, I'll certainly be happy to answer them.

1795 Mr. Mackey - Thank you, Mr. Gidley. Has the staff been provided by the applicant any pictures of what the home would look like?

1798 Mr. Gidley - No sir, we have not.

1800 Mr. Mackey - All right. Any other questions?

Ms. Harris - Yes. Mr. Gidley, this lot is bit shallow, right? I was wondering how many feet from the public right-of-way would they be allowed to construct a home and still have the required number of feet.

1806 Mr. Gidley - It's a pretty good distance. On here you can see 225 feet to here. I would say it goes probably 100 feet, 125 feet, something like that.

1808 So there is adequate room to put the proposed home on it.

1810 Mr. Blankinship - The code requires fifty feet of setback, and they've not even applied for a variance from that.

1813 Ms. Harris - Right. When I drove by there, it just seemed so shallow. The lot seemed shallow, like a big drop. I was curious as to how many feet before that ravine.

	1817		The ravine starts shortly after you get to the wooded		
	1818		nt properties, you can see they're roughly in line with		
	1819		e. You have two homes here. So there's no reason to		
	1820		home here and have a similar front yard as the two		
	1821	•	whether this is wooded or a ravine or not, you can still		
	1822	count this towards your rea	r setback requirement.		
	1823				
	1824	Ms. Harris -	All right, thank you.		
	1825				
	1826	Mr. Gidley -	Yes ma'am.		
	1827				
	1828	Mr. Mackey -	Any other questions for Mr. Gidley? All right, thank		
	1829	you, sir.			
	1830	•			
	1831	Mr. Gidley -	Thank you, Mr. Chair.		
	1832	<b>,</b>	,		
	1833	Mr. Mackey -	Can we hear from the applicant?		
	1834	Will Wildowsy	our no nour nom the approach.		
	1835	Mr. Rempe -	We appreciate staff's time and effort on the case, and		
	1836	•	ngs. We feel that we meet the tests for the variance.		
	1837	We concur with stall 3 linds	igs. We leef that we meet the tests for the variance.		
	1838	Mr. Green -	Could you tell us what kind of home you're going to		
		put there?	Could you tell us what kind of home you're going to		
)	1839	put illere?			
	1840	Mr. Rempe -	The home will be for a first-time homebuyer. It will be		
	1841		· ·		
	1842	1,400 to probably 1,800 square feet. We don't know the exact model yet. The next step will be filing a permit, and we'd work with the County on making sure			
	1843		•		
	1844	everything's right with the	permit.		
	1845	Ma 0	And it will be similar to the other bornes.		
	1846	Mr. Green -	And it will be similar to the other homes?		
	1847				
	1848	Mr. Rempe -	It'll be similar. We're in the homebuilding business,		
	1849	and as you probably know,	you build to make money within that neighborhood.		
	1850				
	1851	Ms. Harris -	Mr. Rempe, would it be two stories or one-story? I		
	1852	know that other homes in	that community seem to be one-story homes, mostly		
	1853	ranchers.			
	1854				
	1855	Mr. Rempe -	We do have plans for a rancher, so that's a good		
	1856	possibility. But I just don't l	know right now.		
	1857				
	1858	Mr. Mackey -	Any other questions?		
	1859	•	•		
	1860	Ms. Harris -	Yes. How did you learn of this lot? I'm just curious.		
	1861		•		

1862 1863 1864	Mr. Rempe - in the affordable home bu	There are a lot of lots that are for sale in Henrico. I'm siness for first-time homebuyers.
1865 1866	Ms. Harris -	So an electronic search?
1867 1868	Mr. Rempe -	Electronic search.
1869 1870	Mr. Blankinship -	He's not giving away his trade secrets.
1871 1872 1873	Mr. Mackey - were approved?	Mr. Rempe, have you seen all five conditions, if they
1874 1875	Mr. Rempe -	Yes.
1876 1877	Mr. Mackey -	Do you agree with all five conditions?
1878 1879	Mr. Rempe -	Yes.
1880 1881	Mr. Mackey -	All right.
1882 1883 1884 1885 1886		I see why it's important now. We did point out a of 1,300 square feet. The code only requires 900, so up to make it more compatible with the surrounding
1887 1888	Mr. Mackey -	And you do agree to comply with that?
1889 1890	Mr. Rempe -	Yes.
1891 1892 1893 1894 1895	application? Anyone to sp	Okay. Any other questions for Mr. Rempe? All right, nyone here who would like to speak in support of this leak in opposition? All right, thank you. Before we go on take ten-minute recess so we can—
1896 1897 1898	Mr. Blankinship - take the recess?	Do you want to go through the decisions first and then
1899 1900	Mr. Mackey -	Yes, let's do that. That would be better.
1901 1902 1903 1904	•	the public hearings, the Board discussed the case This portion of the transcript is included here for e.]
1904 1905 1906	Mr. Mackey -	What is the pleasure of the Board?

Ms. Harris - I would like to make a motion on this. I move that we approve this variance. Looking at the report that we were given, it seems that the five subtests are met. I think that a rancher or something similar on that property would be an improvement in that neighborhood. It's an attractive neighborhood as it is. I see no detrimental harm to the neighborhood if we approve this case.

Mr. Mackey - All right, it's been moved by Ms. Harris. Is there a second?

1916 Mr. Bell - Second.

Mr. Mackey - Seconded by Mr. Bell. Discussion? I agree with Ms. Harris's statements and Mr. Bell. I think all the subtests have been met. I do think it would be an improvement to the area if the variance was approved. Any other discussion? All right, it's been moved and seconded. All in favor of granting the variance say aye. Any opposed. The motion is carried 5 to 0.

After an advertised public hearing and on a motion by Ms. Harris, seconded by Mr. Bell, the Board approved application VAR2018-00006, SHURM HOMES requests a variance from Section 24-94 of the County Code to build a one-family dwelling at 3789 Darbytown Place (Parcel 827-692-6694) zoned Agricultural District (A-1) (Varina). The Board approved the variance subject to the following conditions:

1931 1. This variance applies only to the lot width requirement for one dwelling only.
All other applicable regulations of the County Code shall remain in force.

2. Approval of this request does not imply that a building permit will be issued. Building permit approval is contingent on Health Department requirements, including, but not limited to, soil evaluation for a septic drainfield and reserve area, and approval of a well location.

3. Clearing, grading, or other land disturbing activity shall not begin until the applicant has submitted, and the Department of Public Works has approved, an environmental compliance plan.

4. There shall be no further division of the property.

5. The proposed home shall have brick and/or vinyl siding with a brick foundation on all four sides. It shall contain a minimum of 1,300 square feet of livable floor area.

1950 Affirmative: Bell, Green, Harris, Mackey, Reid 5
1951 Negative: 0
1952 Absent: 0

1953		
1954		this time before bearing the deferred ages of The
1955		t this time before hearing the deferred case of The
1956		ng to take a ten-minute recess while we gather our
1957	materials.	
1958	STI D addalas a tom minum	41
1959	[The Board takes a ten-minu	te recess.j
1960	Ma Martini	call the weeting book to order, and we can proceed
1961	,	call the meeting back to order, and we can proceed
1962	with our final applicant.	
1963	M. Displination T	his assa is CUD2042 00044. The Foot End Landfill
1964	,	his case is CUP2013-00014, The East End Landfill.
1965		uests revocation of a conditional use permit at 1820
1966	Darbytown Road.	
1967	OUD0040 00044 T	HE EAST END LANDELL the director of planning
1968		HE EAST END LANDFILL: the director of planning
1969		ditional use permit at 1820 Darbytown Road (Parcels
1970	•	4 and 809-707-1585) zoned Business District (B-3)
1971	and General Industrial Distric	st (M-2) (Vanna).
1972	Mr. Dionkinship	Jould everyone who intends to sneak to this case
1973		Vould everyone who intends to speak to this case n. Raise your right hands, please. Do you swear the
1974		ve is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the
1975	truth so help you God? Mr. T	
1976	trutti so neip you Gou? Wit. 1	ORAIZ:
1977 1978	Mr. Tokarz - G	good morning, members of the Board. My name is
1978		esenting the director of planning regarding the latest
1979		dfill's noncompliance with the Henrico County Code
1981		by this Board. Indeed, TEEL's excuses for its
1982		onditions imposed in CUP2013-00014 are eerily
1983		rris and I remember about TEEL's illegal deposit of
1984		As Yogi Berra famously said, "It's déjà vu all over
1985	again."	, to reg. Derra rameter, cara, see asja se am ever
1986	- Jann	
1987	We're here today on Mr. Er	merson's petition asking the BZA to revoke the use
1988		th the use permit and to give the landfill ninety days
1989	to stop accepting waste. I ex	plained the reasons for the petition in my December
1990		ant to address TEEL's response in a little more detail
1991	than my letter to you earlier t	·
1992	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
1993	Because TEEL argues abou	t what the Board has the power to do, I want to start
1994		impose conditions on conditional use permits. So I'll
1995		irginia code 15.2-2309, subsection 6. This states that
1996		ear and decide applications for special exceptions as
1997	may be authorized by the or	dinance, which is what the BZA did in 2013, and that
	-	

the Board may impose such conditions relating to the use for which a permit is granted as it may deem necessary in the public interest.

When the BZA approved the use permit in 2013, it imposed thirty-two conditions in its approval. If you read the transcript of that hearing, the applicant agreed to those thirty-two conditions in the approval. So here's what condition #1 said: The use permit is subject to all provisions of the County code. This is important because Section 24-116(c) of the County code on June 27, 2013, had this provision: "Construction or operation shall be commenced within one year of the date of issuance of a special use permit or it shall become void." The reason this is important is because the power of the BZA to issue use permits is what is decided by the Board of Supervisors. When they gave the power to issue a use permit, they also gave the conditions under which use permits can be granted. And 24-116 specifically provided that the construction or operation must be commenced within one year or it shall become void. This requirement of the County code, in our view, was incorporated into the use permit by condition #1.

There is no dispute that TEEL did not commence construction or operation of the added area. The added area was the area that was added as part of CUP2013-00014—l'll just keep calling that the use permit—when the use permit was submitted and approved by the BZA. The added area was an area that had been added to the landfill, not previously part of the 2007 use permit. Therefore, as to the added area, it is our position that the use permit became void on June 27, 2014, because operation and construction did not commence within one year in the added area as required by Henrico County code.

Now TEEL says it didn't have to commence construction or maintenance in the added area because it was operating in the main area of the landfill, and that was sufficient to satisfy Section 24-116(c). However, this argument ignores the fact that one of the two purposes of the use permit was to add the added area to the landfill. In addition, this argument ignores the requirement of section 24-116(c) to commence construction or operation within one year. Because TEEL was already operating in a portion of the landfill, the word *commence* in 24-116(c) applies to the added area, which was not in operation at that time. Because TEEL did not commence construction or operation in the added area within one year of the use permit, TEEL did not comply with condition 1, and the use permit was void.

If you do nothing else today, the director of planning asks the Board to revoke the permit as to the added area to give effect to condition 1 of the use permit and Section 24-116(c) of the Henrico County Code.

Mr. Emerson also seeks revocation of the use permit for TEEL's noncompliance with condition 4. Condition 4 provides that the applicant shall obtain and maintain all applicable permits from the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality. TEEL admits it has not obtained permits from DEQ for the added area. TEEL

claims it's been unable to get the necessary permits for reasons beyond its control. But there are two responses to this argument.

First, TEEL could have come to the BZA in 2014 and asked for an amendment of the use permit when it realized it was not going to comply with condition #4. It did not do so. It can't complain now because it failed to do so at the time.

Secondly, although TEEL blames DEQ and CVWMA and the County for not obtaining its permits for the added area, none of them did anything to stop TEEL from submitting responses to DEQ's technical review #1 during the twenty months between March 2016 and October 2017. In fact, before the BZA hearing on this use permit last August, TEEL admitted to the BZA it had deliberately chosen not to submit anything to DEQ for over seventeen months as a permitting strategy.

Now TEEL also claims it did not need to obtain a permit for the added area because it does not intend to use the added area until sometime in the future. Therefore, it says the word applicable doesn't apply to the added area yet. However, condition 4 required TEEL to obtain all applicable permits. There is not dispute that TEEL needs DEQ permits for land-filling operations in the added area. And this is proven by the fact that TEEL started the DEQ application process for the added area in September 2013. There is simply no provision in condition #4 for TEEL to delay getting a permit for the added area until TEEL decides it needs to. TEEL's position is apparently that TEEL gets to decide how to comply with the use permit simply by claiming that it's not ready to start work in the added area.

Therefore, the BZA should also determine TEEL has not satisfied condition 4 of the use permit.

 The third ground for revocation of the use permit is violation of condition 20, and this is new. This is new from last August. Condition #20 is up here on the screen. "The landfill shall only accept construction, demolition, and debris waste...No hazardous waste as defined by the Virginia Hazardous Waste Management Regulations, nor any biodegradable material other than woody waste from construction, demolition, and land-clearing operations, shall be deposited in the landfill or used as fill or cover material."

 On April 28, 2017, TEEL's annual report certified to the BZA that the materials received by TEEL met the requirements of condition #20. That's attachment T in materials submitted in the December petition. That was a certification to the BZA. Flat statement. No exceptions. But then we found out that certification's not true, subsequent to our meeting in August.

In 2017, DEQ gave TEEL a Notice of Violation, which is attachment R to the Petition for Revocation that was filed on December 1st. In the Notice of Violation.

it included a copy of a March 8, 2017, Generator's Waste Profile form for what's called *spent bauxite mud*, generated during aluminum sulfate production that TEEL has accepted and mixed with soil and used as progressive cover. We would submit to the Board that spent bauxite mud generated during an industrial process is not construction, demolition, or debris waste, nor is it woody waste from construction, demolition, or land-clearing operations.

The September 2017 Notice of Violation also included a copy of a June 6, 2017, Generator's Waste Profile form, for what Sunoco Products, the generator, classified as *pre-sell industrial waste*. Pre-sell industrial paper mill sludge waste is not construction, demolition, or debris waste. Nor is it biodegradable material that is woody waste from construction, demolition, and land-clearing operations. It is paper sludge generated in an industrial process. TEEL's claim that it falls within the use permit because it originally came from wood should be rejected. You can see from these two pictures in the September 2017 DEQ Notice of Violation that this industrial waste did not come from construction, demolition, or land clearing.

For these reasons, the director of planning requests revocation of the use permit for TEEL's failure to comply with conditions 1, 4, and 20 of the use permit. I'll be glad to answer any questions.

Mr. Mackey - All right. Any questions from the Board of staff? None at this time. Thank you.

2115 Mr. Tokarz - Thank you.

2117 Mr. Mackey - Can we hear from the applicant?

Mr. Plumlee - Good morning. I appreciate everyone's patience today. My name is Bryan Plumlee. We're here in support of TEEL.

2122 Mr. Mackey - Can you spell that, Mr. Plumlee?

Yes sir. My last name is P (as in Paul), I-u-m-l-e-e.

2126 Mr. Mackey - Thank you, sir.

Mr. Plumlee - I wasn't born as tall as the Plumlee brothers that play basketball, but it's the same spelling.

We're here, obviously, to object to this petition to revoke. I think I'm going to take about fifteen minutes to go through my presentation. We have two witnesses here to talk very briefly about TEEL as a company and also a little bit about the process of submitting for applications.

Mr. Schmidt is also here with my office to address some items if necessary. I'll try to make this brief, answer your questions, and do this as quickly as I can. The fact that I have a lot of slides actually allows me to move more quickly because I'm just going to speed through them.

First, I want to make sure my objections get put on the record here. We object to the County's discussion of prior incidents by Mr. Tokarz before the 2013 CUP. We object to the County's submission of a DEQ Notice of Violation as it is not a finding of fact that's admissible as part of this proceeding. We object to the County attorney presenting himself as an expert witness in solid waste matters. And the County has presented no competent evidence in this hearing. We object to the County's revised petition, because the County has shifted its position. If you recall in August when we came here, the County came specifically to revoke a permit for an expansion. We pointed out that they were trying to revoke our only permit. Well I think they've come around to agree to the point that if our permit is revoked, we're shut down as an operation. In the period of time since we came in August, the Notice of Violation from the DEQ was gathered by the County, and they're using that as a separate matter now under condition 20 to try to shut down our operation. We object to that shifting of position. I'll go through the specifics.

First, a little bit of background on this landfill. I'm sure you all have heard a lot about the landfill over the years, but I'm just going to give you a quick summary. These landfills have been in operation in this county since the 1980s. In 2007, two landfills were combined into one permit. The 2007 permit that was approved December 21, 2007, combined the East End Landfill with the Darbytown Landfill. The DEQ Solid Waste Permit 524 is the current DEQ permit for this landfill, held by TEEL as the only permit required by DEQ. The CUP in 2013 actually superseded the 2007 CUP, and it was approved by this Board in June 2013 at a hearing.

First, the application for the 2007 was very similar to the 2013 in that it said it was to combine operations of two landfills under one permit and add additional property to the permit. Here's the approved permit from December 21, 2007.

Looking first at condition 4, if you go back to 2007 and look at condition 4, you see it says that the applicant shall obtain and maintain a permit or permits from the DEQ and specifically stated if this condition is not satisfied within one year of approval, the use permit shall be void. There was a very specific reason for that condition. That was— what you see in the narrative that was submitted in 2007, it states quite plainly given the need to obtain a DEQ permit, the applicant requests that the effectiveness of the CUP be conditioned upon the issuance of a new DEQ permit. They needed a new DEQ permit. That was obvious from the application.

This information is contained in exhibit E from the County's petition to revoke. You see that Solid Waste Permit 525 was indeed obtained by TEEL on January 1, 2008. So the very next month from the date of the hearing, the granting in December 2007 of the first CUP, they obtained their DEQ permit 525. The Solid Waste Permit 524 they'd already possessed walking into that hearing. They had possessed it as early as May 2006.

What happened then was that TEEL consolidated Solid Waste Permit 525 into Solid Waste Permit 524 to make it one. And here is the permit modification #10 dated March 23, 2012, and it simply says this tenth mod of the permit includes merging permit 525 and permit 524 into one facility operating under permit #524.

When we came for approval of the CUP in 2013, we held one permit with the DEQ. That's the same permit we have now. That's the same permit we're going to have into the future. That's why—you see first—I want to go back to the application in 2013. We're asking you to add the Simons' tract, which is about eleven acres of property, to the East End Landfill—which at the time of this application was 107 acres—with the effect of replacing and superseding the prior conditional use permit. So the 2013 replaced the 2007, adds the Simons' tract to it

And now condition 4 has been changed by the Board. Condition 4 says the applicant shall obtain and maintain all applicable permits. Not the permit or permits from the DEQ, but all applicable permits. It removes the one-year deadline. You see it right there in the condition. It removed the one-year deadline. I'll flip back so you can see the prior condition 4 said if this condition's not satisfied within a year, the use permit is void. That was removed in 2013.

So there is no other DEQ permit required. That is a basic misunderstanding the County had at the outset of this. It's shifted its position because it was mistaken. It thought it was revoking a permit just for an expansion. We know that's not true. The only permit we need from DEQ we currently have. In fact, the technical review that Mr. Tokarz presented to you, you see it references permit #524. That is the permit we hold. All we're seeking is a modification to add the expansion in the landfill. We're not seeking any new permits. That's a very important distinction. Again, this is the condition. The applicant shall obtain and maintain all applicable permits from the DEQ. We possess it.

What the Board did instead, instead of having the one-year termination period in that condition #4, the Board put different language in this conditional use permit in 2013. You see it at the very end, the very last page of the conditional use permit. It said the rules of the Board provide that this approval must be acted upon by June 27, 2014, or it becomes void. Acted upon. Okay. So what do we do to act upon it?

2226 2227	Mr. Mackey - portion that was the south	I just have one question for clarification. TEEL is the west property?
2228 2229 2230	Mr. Plumlee -	I believe so.
2231 2232	Mr. Mackey -	Okay. And you bought Darbytown and—okay.
2233 2234 2235	Mr. Plumlee - 2007 that that combination	Darbytown. And they were combined. That was in occurred.
2236 2237	Mr. Mackey -	All right. Sorry.
2238 2239	Mr. Plumlee - eleven acres to it. That's w	So 2013 came, and we wanted to add the Simons' hat 2013 was about. In addition to wiping out the old—
2240 2241 2242	Mr. Mackey -	Now 2013, is it still two properties or is it one now?
2243 2244 2245	Mr. Plumlee - 2013. Both as a permit bef	They had been merged before the presentation in fore the Board, the CUP, and the DEQ permit 524.
2246 2247	Mr. Mackey -	All right. So before 2013, they came together.
2248 2249	Mr. Plumlee -	That's correct.
2250 2251	Mr. Mackey -	Okay. All right. Sorry for the interruption.
2252 2253	Mr. Plumlee -	No concern at all. That's a good question.
The Board actually decided is starkly different than the important to understand a June 27, 2014, or it becomes began immediately to operation.		ed to put the restriction on time in this language, which a 2007 language. So the language becomes extremely and consider here, saying we have to act upon it by omes void. Well we acted upon this right away. We rate. You see our inspections that we're receiving from unty inspections through the years that we've received, o through.
2262 2263 2264 2265 2266	We also acted upon the conditional use permit by requesting an extension and submitting our part A application. You see September 25, 2013? We submit our part A application with the DEQ. So we are acting upon it. There's no dispute that we have acted upon this.	
2267 2268 2269 2270 2271	have to act within a certain Mr. Tokarz has cited us as says the use permit is sub	ress very quickly. It's a very similar concept in that you in period of time is what the code section is saying. But a violating. But if you look at the language, the condition bject to all requirements of County code, and the code has cited—116(d) actually—says construction or

operation shall commence within two years of the date of issuance of the conditional use permit or it shall become void. Well, that's simply not the type of CUP that was being requested at the time. It was truly an operating facility. It was operating at that time. So this code section was never going to be violated. It was never subject—really, this landfill was never subject to it. The expanded area only comes into play when the expanded area is required. We're still an operating landfill. Since the 1980s.

Mr. Mackey -

This 2013 one wasn't for the expanded area?

Mr. Plumlee - It was only for the addition of the expanded area, but it actually superseded the prior. Okay. So in other words, if you look at the application, the wording of it, it's eleven acres being added to a 107-acre site. Okay. And the application is saying to add the Simons' contracting yard to the East End Landfill with the effect of replacing and superseding the prior conditional use permit. So this is not a CUP just for an expansion. It is a CUP for the landfill. Okay. It's an operating facility. So there is no distinction made here in any of the language of the CUP saying we understand you're operating, but you have to operate now the expanded area. There's nothing in the CUP that directs us to do anything to the expanded area. In fact, if you read these conditions, they're to be enacted now. Stop signs, entrances, the way the trucks drive—all of that is to happen now. Nobody says wait for a year; they say take these conditions and apply them now. Okay. So the conditional use permit is in effect. That's why that County code section can't be violated by the landfill at that time.

Let me get back to my spot very quickly. Okay.

So the summary here is we've been operating under a solid waste permit for the DEQ 524 since May of 2006. Solid waste permit 525 was merged in 2012, and they were seeking to modify 524 for the expansion, which is not needed until the landfill is filled. Right now we're still with a brand new cell that's just been built. So the expanded area isn't going to be needed for many years down the road, two or three years down the road.

As a practical matter, you wouldn't force us to build the expanded area when it's not needed by the operation. We're an operating facility. That's where I think there's a basic misunderstanding here. We obtained and maintained all applicable permits. We still have our DEQ permit. No problems. TEEL acted upon the permit prior to June 27, 2014, and we operated within two years. So we've met both condition 1 and condition 4 clearly without question.

Now I want to address condition 20 that Mr. Tokarz raised regarding the materials that have been taken at the landfill. Now there's been no evidence presented by the County at all.

First, it's important to understand the DEQ regs which the County does not have the expertise the DEQ holds with regards to the materials that are taken there. However, the County does inspect and conducts monthly inspections of the facility. With regards to bauxite mud and woody sludge, number one, it is not waste under the regs. It is not waste under the regs. When you operate a landfill, you put down the C&D material. But to meet all the requirements of operating, you also then have to put dirt or fill—or cover material in order to cover that C&D during daily operations. You can't leave the area exposed to the wind and the elements. You must on a daily basis put cover over the C&D to properly operate under the regulations. That's what the bauxite mud and the woody sludge were being used for, for cover.

This is a very important thing to understand. Cover is not what is brought for depositing in the landfill. It is a product for use to operate the landfill. There is an important distinction. If you go into the DEQ regs, it states the following materials are not solid waste for the purpose of this chapter. Materials that are used or reused or prepared for use or reuse as an ingredient in an industrial process to make a product or as effective substitutes for commercial products or natural resources. Bauxite mud can be mixed with and used as effective substitute for daily cover, which is a natural resource like dirt. Bauxite mud is an appropriate substitute for soil.

Same thing with woody sludge. It meets the same definition. It can be mixed and used as an effective substitute for daily cover, a natural resource. Woody sludge is an appropriate substitute for soil. That's why it's used. It really doesn't have any other purpose. You wouldn't use woody sludge to deposit it in a landfill. It would simply be a blob sitting in your landfill. You spread it out thinly mixed with soil, and you use it as cover. It will hold things down while you can then operate with your trucks and bring in more C&D. That's what we're talking about.

I want to address the next misunderstanding I think I see in the County's petition to revoke. They're asserting to you somehow that industrial waste is prohibited under condition 20. It is not. If you look at condition 20, it does not prohibit industrial waste used as cover, in the process of cover.

Now I want to give just a little bit of history again about 2007. In 2007 when you look at condition 20, it does not regulate cover. Condition 20, if you look specifically it says the material to be deposited in the landfill. It's talking about what's to be deposited shall not include hazardous waste or any biodegradable material other than woody waste from construction, demolition, and land-clearing operations. So in 2007, you did not regulate the cover; it was what was being deposited.

What happened next is the County got into a dispute with TEEL over the use of fly ash specifically in tires. There was a lawsuit that occurred. And there was a resolution, a settlement of that. Okay. That's not why we're here, but that was

raised at that time as a problem after the 2007 CUP. So how was that addressed?

If you look in the approval letter of 2013 when you talk about condition 20, now in condition 20 you're regulating fill for the first time. Did not regulate fill going back to 2007, but now you're regulating fill. It says no hazardous waste as defined by the Virginia Hazardous Waste Management regs nor any biodegradable material other than woody waste for construction, demolition, and land-clearing operations shall be deposited in the landfill or used as fill or cover material. So now they're saying no hazardous waste as cover material and no biodegradable material other than woody waste for cover material. So for the first time, starting in 2013, we are told that the product that we use to cover during our operations, to spread, cannot be hazardous so—and it can also not be biodegradable unless it's woody waste from the land-clearing operations. All right. It does not prohibit industrial waste.

So the Notice of Violation that Mr. Tokarz pointed out and the County has relied upon, they say the spent bauxite mud is industrial waste. Industrial waste is not prohibited as cover. Then, the pre-sell industrial paper mill sludge from the Sunoco products. This, too, is industrial waste. Again, it's not prohibited as cover. There is no prohibition of industrial waste for the purpose of cover. C&D material only for deposits. Okay?

So if you know the industry, the landfill industry, there is a process of operating the landfill and then what you take in from trucks, what trucks are bringing to you. You're regulating what the trucks can bring in. That's C&D. Okay? Later you said, "We didn't like the idea that you used fly ash, so we're going to regulate now what you use as cover." So that came later in 2013, and that says no hazardous. Well, the industrial waste is not hazardous waste. This bauxite mud and the woody sludge, that's not hazardous. But it's industrial. And you look.

This is a quote from a Notice of Violation from the DEQ. It says the facility accepted and disposed of industrial waste. Its records show that spent bauxite from aluminum sulfite production originating from Chemtrade was accepted, mixed with soil, and used as progressive cover. It's talking about using that item as cover. The same thing with the sludge.

But here's my point about the Notice of Violation being used for the purpose of sustaining this action against us, which started last August when they said, "We're only here to cancel your extension. But oh now we realize it's the whole permit we're trying to attack." They want to use a Notice of Violation. But if you look at the Virginia Code 2.2-4001, it says a Notice of Violation should not state that a responsible party has violated or is in violation of an environmental requirement, because that might imply incorrectly that DEQ has made a case decision. The responsible party is entitled to notice and a process to dispute alleged violations before a case decision is made or corrected action imposed.

So you can't use this as a finding. And why? Because we didn't have our informal fact-finding proceeding with the DEQ. Why is that? Because the DEQ has told us that they're taking no further action on this. You see this as an email from Frank Lupini, compliance manager of the DEQ. I've spoken to land protection, and the issue mentioned in #4, which is the bauxite mud and the woody sludge, there's nothing further remaining to be completed. And why is that? Because the DEQ says we'll let you use it. You can use it. You requested to use as alternate progressive cover, and we hereby authorize you to do it. Same thing with the wood. It's right there. They fully authorized this use for cover. Condition 20 doesn't prohibit it as cover.

So we should not be here on a violation of 20. It is for the purpose of cover. And the County has not presented one witness. Nothing. It has just submitted with DEQ—but DEQ has its own expertise, its own understanding of its regs, the way it regulates waste. They hold us to hard rules that we must comply with, and we're dealing with them. They have the expertise to regulate the landfill.

So industrial waste is not prohibited under condition 20 for cover. The DEQ is taking no action for its use in the past, and the DEQ is allowing us to use it as cover.

Now, I want to finish this section 20 by talking about woody waste, because woody waste is specifically allowed under the condition. First of all, debris waste means waste. And we've talked about C&D for a minute, debris waste. It's the defined in the code to mean stumps and wood, brush, leaves, etcetera. Land-clearing activities means the removal of flora—like trees—from a parcel of land. Woody sludge is wood, and the wood came from trees which were cultivated on a parcel of land. It's entirely consistent with the regs of the state and entirely consistent with condition 20. No biodegradable waste other than woody waste from construction, demolition, and land-clearing operations used as fill or as cover material. So you can even deposit this.

So how does Sunoco get its wood? It tells you in its sustainability policy dealing with forests. And here's their sustainability policy. They're getting their wood by land clearing.

So our conclusions, we have met conditions 1 and 4 that the County claims we violated because we timely obtained our DEQ permit and we maintain it today. Condition 20, bauxite mud and woody waste are not solid waste to begin with. If they're deemed industrial waste, your condition 20 doesn't prohibit industrial waste as cover. And the Sunoco woody waste originated from land clearing and therefore would be defined also as C&D and allowed specifically under your condition. There are many ways that we've fully complied with condition 20 that I've gone through.

It is the County's burden to prove non-compliance with our conditional use permit. But it has submitted no testimony and no evidence. And let's look at the inspections of the County. Here the County is in March of 2017, which DEQ says was the first month of acceptance of the cover. What does the County inspection say? The County inspector certified that only C&D waste was accepted. The inspector understands that there's waste deposited and then there's cover. This happened for every month that we were able to obtain inspection reports. There were two or three months there that the County didn't have inspection reports.

2464 Mr. Mackey -

What was the last slide?

Mr. Plumlee - The last slide is actually my request from our office for the months April, May, and June of 2017, and the County says we could not find those inspection reports. So I wanted to point out for the months of April, May, and June 2017, we did not receive inspection reports from the County through our FOIA request.

My point is for every month we were able to obtain inspection reports, they've all indicated we have complied with C&D-only waste accepted in our facility. So there is no assertion that we're allowing trucks in to dump in this landfill, waste other than C&D. This whole discussion is about the material we're using for cover. That's all this is about.

That's in essence my presentation. I'm more than happy to address any questions. My colleague Mr. Schmidt was going to briefly address the issue of the CCBs, the fly ash, that was an old issue that Mr. Tokarz recently brought up in his most recent submission this week. I think it was on the 19th of March. Just simply to address the fact that that went to court. The two sides resolved it, settled it with a voluntary dismissal. Okay? It was, frankly, after that point that we came before you in 2013, and in 2013 you said specifically not to use fly ash. That's not the accusation today. Today it is that this bauxite mud and woody sludge should not be used for cover—or shouldn't have been used for cover. I hope I've pointed out why it did not violate condition 20 in using it and pointing out that the DEQ is permitting us to use it. So we hold our permit, and the DEQ's allowing us to us it.

Mr. Mackey - Mr. Plumlee, I have one question about the woody sludge. The picture that they showed, they said it was paper pulp or pulp something. That's what you're calling the woody sludge?

Mr. Plumlee - I can't testify what is in the photograph, Mr. Tokarz indicated that. I have not verified what's in that photo with what is the woody sludge being used as cover.

Mr. Mackey - Did it look like wood to you?

2501 2502 2503		It looked like paper products, I think. So the woody ge, ultimately it comes from land clearing. It for the at's what the DEQ notation was about.
2504 2505 2506	Mr. Mackey - sludge and paper pulp?	Does the DEQ say there's a difference in woody
2507 2508 2509 2510 2511 2512 2513 2514 2515 2516 2517 2518	#4. Okay? So if the insp there, and he took a picture somebody writes up a rep our operation corrects there not evidence. No one has don't have that evidence something. That's all that if	EQ specifically said it's the Sunoco pre-sell industrial
2519 2520 2521	waste, which is the woody  Mr. Mackey -	Can you accept pulp?
2522 2523 2524	Mr. Plumlee -	Can I accept pulp? I can use it for cover. Now cover—
2525 2526 2527	Mr. Mackey - for cover. If you didn't use	But you just said that you don't know that it was used it for cover, then were they just accepting it as trash?
2528 2529 2530	Mr. Plumlee - Okay? So I'm not testifyir used for.	Well, I'm not presenting evidence; I'm an attorney.  ng as to what's in that photograph and what that was
2531 2532	Mr. Mackey -	Okay.
2533 2534 2535 2536 2537 2538 2539	is. They didn't do any of the	That's the burden of the County. The County says needed to bring a witness out here to say this is what it hat. They simply said DEQ says they used this pre-sell ot C&D, and so they violated. That's the case that's
2540	I'm sorry. Does anyone els	se have any—
2541 2542	Mr. Mackey -	Yes. Does anyone have any questions?
2543 2544 2545	Ms. Harris - couple of questions about	You mentioned coal ash, but I would just ask you a that. Was the coal ash considered cover?

	2547	Mr. Plumlee -	You're talking about prior to 2013?
	2548	Ma Hawis	Vac
	2549	Ms. Harris -	Yes.
	2550	Mr. Plumiee -	I do not know.
	2551 2552	MI. Fluttiee -	1 do not know.
	2553	Ms. Harris -	Okay.
	2554	1913.	Oray.
	2555	Mr. Plumlee -	Mr. Schmidt may be able to answer that one.
	2556		Will commutating by able to unions, that one.
	2557	Ms. Harris -	Okay. And you said the issue was voluntarily
	2558	resolved?	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
	2559		
	2560	Mr. Plumlee -	There was a voluntary dismissal order entered by
	2561	both sides.	•
	2562		
	2563	Ms. Harris -	Do you know why?
	2564		
	2565	Mr. Plumlee -	I'm sure Mr. Tokarz can address it, but Mr. Schmidt
	2566	specifically is here to talk a	bout that issue.
	2567		
	2568	Ms. Harris -	Okay, thank you.
	2569		
U	2570	Mr. Bell -	When it comes with the CUP, whether before or after
	2571	•	e permit with one through whatever number, you read
	2572		ed them. But you're denying the accuracy now. Why is
	2573	that?	
	2574		
	2575	Mr. Plumlee -	I'm not denying their accuracy. I'm asserting—
	2576	Mar Dall	NATALI
	2577	Mr. Bell -	Well you signed it one year or two years or six months
	2578	or whatever it was.	
	2579	Mr. Plumlee -	I'm not ours I 100 percent understand the guestion
	2580	Wir. Flumliee -	I'm not sure I 100 percent understand the question.
	2581 2582	Mr. Bell -	Well I'll make it simple then. When you were
	2583		use permit, they would have had to have been signed
	2584		with TEEL. Is that correct?
	2585	and approved by someone	With FEEL, to that contoct.
	2586	Mr. Plumlee -	I believe it was actually signed by the County when it
	2587		permit. I'm not suggesting that TEEL didn't accept the
	2588		it TEEL accepted those terms, thirty-two of them, in
	2589	2013. I don't disagree with	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	2590		
	2591	Mr. Bell -	I was referring as we go back because there are a
U	2592		ere conditional uses were added as well.

**Mr. Plumlee -** Sure.

Mr. Bell - And they're all approved and signed by TEEL. So I would assume that—and I've heard some dispute about the accuracy of what was there.

Mr. Plumlee - Well it's not—I guess I'm not suggesting what's on the paper is not on the paper. What I'm saying is when you carefully read what's on the paper, the actions that we're accused of doing conform with what's on the paper. We meet the conditions. I'm not suggesting the words say something other than what they say. I'm just saying when it says we have to hold all applicable permits, I'm saying we do hold all applicable permits. And I've shown how we hold 524. That is our permit. When it says we have to operate within two years, I show you inspection reports showing we've operated within two years. When I talk about condition 20, I say when you started regulating the cover material that we're using, you limited us to no hazardous—we can't use hazardous—and you limited us to biodegradable except for woody waste. And I wanted to point out that we—the industrial waste that the DEQ says that we use, that does not violate condition 20. It doesn't limit it from industrial waste.

Those are the only points I'm trying to assert.

Ms. Harris - Mr. Plumlee, you made so many statements about cover and fill. At what point does cover become fill or does it ever become fill?

Mr. Plumlee - That's a metaphysical question. I think what you—my working understanding of cover is that that is your daily working material. It can be spread in and thinned over to create that layer that needs to be there to hold that trash down so it doesn't blow. Gusts of wind come during working periods. You're not ready to put the big cap on your landfill. You're working it. You have exposed areas. You cover those exposed areas with cover. Then you bring another load of waste. You cover it. That's the proper operation of a landfill.

Ms. Harris - So then you're saying that the cover does become fill, because when they bring the next load in . . .

Mr. Plumlee - Right. I think that becomes the metaphysical question, right? Because now it's inside the landfill, no doubt. However, that is the product that we're working with, the landfill owner. Right? It's planning its construction of its landfill. How do I do that? I have items coming in on a truck. I'm not sure it's a thousand percent. They've got to be C&D. Right? They could be big blocks of concrete, they could be boards, they could be all these different things. Those are the deposited items in my landfill coming off trucks weighed and charged for. Okay. Then there's my product. I'm either having to buy it, or people bring it to me to use as cover? So that's the planning. It does become the interior of the

landfill, but cover has a separate operating mechanism to it and understanding to it—all right—in the process of operating a landfill. Because you can't always just use dirt, number one.

2641 2642 2643

2644

2645

2646

2647

2648

2649

2650

2651 2652

2653 2654

2657

2658

2661

2662

2663

2639

2640

And number two, businesses need to be able to sell or get rid of certain items that the DEQ says that's perfectly permissible for cover. It's perfectly permissible. But it has to be the DEQ that regulates that. Okay. But if the County comes along and says, "We don't care what the DEQ says. We're not going to let you use hazardous waste as cover. We're not going to let you use biodegradable other than woody waste." Okay. My point is both of these items came out of an industrial process. And DEQ said that they're industrial waste. So the County's wanting to use the fact that they were industrial waste as a violation of twenty when they were being used as cover. The County said they're being used as cover. They're citing the DEQ. So they all agree that industrial waste is simply not in violation of condition 20 when it's cover. That is the point we are trying to make.

2655 2656

It's not as though we said to Sunoco, just dump as much of that as you want over here. Bring it in, we fill it, we mix it with soil, and we use it as cover in our operations. And no one has suggested anything is wrong with that, and the DEQ says yeah, use it. So that's my point. Thank you very much.

2659 2660

> Mr. Schmidt -Good morning. May it please the Board, my name is Paul Schmidt, I'm also an attorney with Poole Brooke Plumlee, I'd like to speak a little bit more about what's going on at The East End Landfill.

2664

Mr. Mackey -Excuse me, sir. Can you spell your last name? 2665

2666 2667

Mr. Schmidt -Oh, I'm sorry. S-c-h-m-i-d-t.

2668 2669

Mr. Mackey -Thank you. Schmidt?

2670

Mr. Schmidt -Paul. 2671 2672

2673

Mr. Mackey -No, what's your last name?

2674 2675

Schmidt, S-c-h-m-i-d-t. Mr. Schmidt -

2676

2677 Mr. Mackey -Thank you.

2678 2679

2680

2681

2682

Mr. Schmidt -Madam board member, specifically the solid waste management regulation requires the use of progressive daily cover of at least six inches to be placed down daily to prevent escape of dirt and decrease—. So it's one of the operational requirements of the landfill that is required by the DEQ to operate within their regulations.

2683

Ms. Harris - Mr. Schmidt, before you go any further, because I won't come back to this. You just described what cover was. But when the case came up before us and we had pictures of coal ash blowing off of the covered area . . . that's why I asked my question. When does cover actually become fill?

Mr. Schmidt - Let me address my understanding of those laws just a bit more. In those cases, that was talking about, I believe, the use of coal combustion byproducts that were also being used as quote/unquote structural fill. That was part of the definition of what is a beneficial use of a coal combustion residual or CCR. It's called a couple of different things. The feds call it CCBs; the state calls it CCR. And beneficial use of a CCR is a specifically defined term. There was a dispute about whether the use of the CCR in that particular context was appropriate. I'm not 100 percent certain if they were also using it as progressive cover. But I know that that was an issue that was important to this Board in 2013 because there is a part of condition 20 that didn't get talked about, surprisingly enough.

These are the last two sentences of condition 20: In no event shall any coal combustion byproducts or auto-shredder residue be accepted by the facility, and tires shall not be stockpiled, shredded, or recycled on the property. This, again, came out of, I believe, the same argument, what is solid waste, what is construction/demolition debris waste, what is allowed to be inside of a CCD landfill. In fact, the CCD landfill regulations specifically allow tires. I believe at some point this Board made the decision they didn't want tires, and that's why this ended up as a specific condition. The use of the coal combustion residuals being apparently of issue, that made it in as a specific prohibited issue.

What I wanted to show the Board—and maybe this will help slightly if I might approach.

Mr. Mackey - Mr. Schmidt, real quickly. They still accept tires? I thought that condition said the tires couldn't be shredded.

Mr. Schmidt - That's correct.

Mr. Mackey - I imagine they can't be shredded so they wouldn't be used as cover.

Mr. Schmidt - I know that is used as cover in the industry. So that may have been an issue back in the day. But again, this is a letter that came from the County attorney—2013. It's signed by Attorney—. I would note that if you flip through the pages, you can see that Tokarz—on a couple of these signature blocks. But the second page—and again, this came from the County attorney. On the second page is the motion for voluntary dismissal. What happened is—if you look at Mr. Tokarz's Monday submittal, he brings up this old battle. What he does is he tells you the story of the battle over beneficial use of

the coal combustion residuals right up to this Board's denial of the use of that material. And then his narrative stops. But that is not the end of the story, and the rest of the story is what's in front of you.

A series of lawsuits were filed. TEEL immediately appealed the decision of the BZA. I believe there was a suit against the director of planning. I believe there was a countersuit against TEEL from the County. There was a big argument. You can see from the motion for voluntary dismissal. Since the filing of the petition, TEEL has applied for and received a new conditional use permit for the site. The new conditional use permit—and that would be the 2013 conditional use permit we've been discussing ad infinitum—specifically prohibits the receipt of coal combustion byproducts for any purpose and precludes the stockpiling, shredding, recycling of waste tires at the landfill. Accordingly, the issues in the petition have been mooted.

So the way that the issue was disposed of was that the issue was hotly contested all the way up to the court. They agreed to voluntarily stop taking additional CCR, we'll put it directly in the language of the conditional use permit, and that was enough to cause the parties to say okay, we're all happy, we're dismissing the case. So there was a little bit more to it. And I think that helps explain or at least inform the Board of what the motivations might have been for the tail end of the language on twenty and the fact that twenty was amended from just saying only take CCD waste to be deposited to this whole discussion of what can you take, what are you going to do with some of these oddball waste-like auto-shredded waste, which is called auto slop, coal combustion residuals, and what are you going to use as progressive daily cover.

That's all I have to say. If anybody has any questions on those particular points, I'd be happy to answer any questions at this time.

Mr. Mackey - Any questions for Mr. Schmidt? All right. Thank you, sir.

Mr. Schmidt - And next I'd like to ask Ms. Sherone Cordell, she's an employee of TEEL. And she's going to get up here and speak briefly about the operations at the site.

Ms. Cordell Good morning, Mr. Chairperson, members of the Board. My name is Sherone [sp] Cordell. My last name is spelled C-o-r-d-e-l-l, and I'm employed at TEEL. I just want to go through briefly for you the chronology to date of TEEL's permitting process for the expansion.

This started back in September of 2013. The part A permit application was submitted by Golder Associates to the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality. Thirty-one months goes by, over 2-1/2 years, and on March 4, 2016, the technical review #1 comments from DEQ were sent to TEEL. In November of

2777 2778 2779	December, TEEL employs	ge of ownership of TEEL. And then immediately in s Draper Aden Associates, engineering firm, to begin and environmental services. Eleven months later in
2780 2781 2782		mitted the revised part A comments to technical review
2783 2784 2785 2786 2787 2788 2789	Now, the projected time frame from completion of the permitting process, we're projecting completion at December of 2019. It's important to note that these time frames of course are dependent on DEQ, their scheduling, their review. At this point, however, TEEL does have an estimated life of three to four years remaining in the existing landfill site. So that's kind of where we are insofar as the expansion permitting process.	
2790 2791 2792	Mr. Mackey - for Ms. Cordell?	Does anyone from the Board or staff have questions
2793 2794	Mr. Green -	You said who you were, what is your role with TEEL?
2795 2796 2797	Ms. Cordell specifically for TEEL and it	Yes. I'm counsel as well. I'm an attorney as well, its affiliates.
2798 2799 2800	Mr. Mackey - project three to four years	Ms. Cordell, I have a question. You're saying that they of life in the existing.
2801 2802	Ms. Cordell	Existing, yes.
2803 2804 2805	Mr. Mackey - conditional use permit here	Okay. Because we're not getting away from the whole is for the addition. Correct?
2806 2807	Ms. Cordell	What we're talking about here today?
2808 2809 2810	Mr. Mackey - area.	Yes. The conditional use permit is for the additional
2811 2812 2813	Mr. Plumlee - additional area alone. It wa	Well the conditional use permit was not for the as for the entire site.
2814 2815	Mr. Mackey -	Okay.
2816 2817 2818		This may be a matter of semantics, but a very that the CUP was just for the expansion and therefore mit for the expansion and you failed—
2819 2820 2821	Mr. Mackey - mean, people only come	But you had a permit for what was already existing. I for a conditional use permit if they're changing what

they're using or adding on to it.

	2823 2824	Mr. Plumiee -	But we consolidated all those areas within the landfill
	2825	under the '07. It all became	
	2826		
	2827	Mr. Mackey -	Yes, but this is 2013 after you—
	2828 2829	Mr. Plumlee -	This is 2013.
	2830		
	2831	Mr. Mackey -	And you still wanted—
	2832 2833	Mr. Plumlee -	And we superseded the old permit, the 2007.
	2834	Wil. I Idillico	7 Ma We Superseded the Sla permit, the 2507.
	2835	Mr. Mackey -	Right. With the new—
	2836	Mr. Plumlee -	With the new Dight?
	2837 2838	Mr. Flumlee -	With the new. Right?
	2839	Mr. Mackey -	And new conditions.
	2840		
	2841	Mr. Plumlee -	And so—and that's where it's—frankly, and if you look itself, the one-year term comes off.
	2842 2843	specifically at the condition	risell, the one-year term comes on.
	2844	Mr. Mackey -	When did it come off?
1	2845	Mr. Dhamba	16 44 0007
'	2846 2847	Mr. Plumlee -	If you go from the 2007—
	2848	Mr. Mackey -	Was it in there in 2013?
	2849	•	
	2850	Mr. Plumlee -	It was removed in 2013, the one-year requirement.
	2851 2852	Mr. Blankinship -	The one-year requirement for the DEQ permit.
	2853	m. Siammonp	The che year requirement to the deal permit
	2854	Mr. Plumlee -	That's correct. The one-year requirement for the DEQ
	2855 2856	permit was removed. That	's right.
	2857	Mr. Mackey -	All right.
	2858	,	
	2859	Mr. Plumlee -	And this Board said we had to act upon the permit
	2860 2861	within that next year.	
	2862	Mr. Mackey -	Twelve months.
	2863	•	
	2864	Mr. Plumlee -	It was basically a year, yes.
	2865 2866	Mr. Mackey -	Okay. All right.
1	2867		<b>,</b>

2868 2869 2870	Mr. Plumlee - make.	And so we acted upon it. That's the point I'm trying to
2871 2872	Mr. Mackey -	All right.
2873 2874	Mr. Plumlee -	We have one last brief witness.
2875 2876	Mr. Mackey -	Were there any other questions?
2877 2878	Ms. Harris -	Not at this time.
2879 2880	Mr. Plumlee -	I'm sorry.
2881 2882	Mr. Mackey -	No, it was none.
2883 2884	Mr. Plumlee -	Okay, thank you.
2885 2886	Mr. Mackey -	You can go ahead.
2887 2888 2889	Ms. Ohree - morning. My name is Yvet	Just checking to make sure it's still morning. Good te Ohree, and I live in the county.
2890 2891	Mr. Mackey -	Can you spell that last name?
2892 2893	Ms. Ohree -	Oh. O-h-r-e-e.
2894 2895	Mr. Mackey -	Thank you.
2896 2897 2898 2899 2900 2901 2902	payable/office manager. TEEL, seven of which community, and I just as	I live in the county at 7016 Bowling Way. I have been ce September 2010. My position there is accounts Currently, we have twenty-one employees there at live in Henrico County. We at TEEL support the k that the Board not grant the petition to revoke our ral of us within the company that live in Henrico.
2903 2904 2905	Mr. Mackey - questions?	Okay. Thank you, Ms. Ohree. Were there any
2906 2907 2908	Ms. Harris - located near Darbytown Re	Ms. Ohree, where is the office located? Are you oad?
2909 2910	Ms. Ohree - and TEEL is at 1820 Darby	Yes. The office is located at 1790 Darbytown Road, ytown Road.
2911 2912	Ms. Harris -	You said 7090?

2914 Ms. Ohree - 1 7 9 0 Darbytown.

2915

2916 Ms. Harris - Okay. I've seen that structure, but I didn't know if that 2917 was your office.

2918

2919 Ms. Ohree - Yes.

2920

Ms. Harris - I just wondered if you were breathing the same air we're talking about. I guess this is as good a time as any to say it. This is not for you, Ms. Ohree. This is probably for the attorney. And I need to ask Mr. Schmidt, too. What is your position, Mr. Schmidt?

2925

2926 Mr. Schmidt - We're both outside counsel.

2927

2928 Ms. Harris - Okay, counsel. Okay, that's fine. I just needed that.

2929 2930

Mr. Plumlee - Ms. Cordell works in the company; we're outside council for TEEL.

2932 2933

2931

2934

2935

2936

2937

2938

2939

2940

2941

2942

2943

of-or Ms. Harris -Okay. Mr. Schmidt. аге you aware Mr. Plumlee—of the history of this site, this business, that has been a problem for years? We were told that the permit had a lifetime and now we're getting all these extensions. So are you aware of the site's history? And what is the projected date for this facility being closed down in the future? I have to say I've noticed an improvement. There was one time when it rained; you couldn't drive through that neighborhood. The stench was just unbelievable. So I learned that can be corrected, because after we complained about it, it was corrected. But you keep expanding this. This huge, you know, Mt. Trashmore in the community. I'm just concerned, when is this all going to end. I'll probably retire from the Board before it ends. I just wonder.

2944 2945

2946

2947

2948

2949

2950

Mr. Plumlee - This eleven acres has a longer projected life than the 3-1/2 that is current. The operation is largely closed. There is a new cell. I say new; it's relatively new. It's cell 3-D. It's not completed and it's not finished. When that's finished, then you have the construction of the remaining eleven acres. So what you have—and I'm sure you've seen the map many times. It looks like a horseshoe. The eleven acres is in the middle and would complete that area. That would fill up the area for landfill.

2951 2952 2953

2954

2955

2956

2957

2958

There's about a \$6 million bond that has to be honored here with the monitoring, the maintenance of that site. I only bring that up because the continued operation supports all that. It supports its maintenance. It supports the good work that's being done. If you look here, I've just pulled this up to show an inspection for March of 2017. The County inspector certified C&D waste, but also wrote up there, signs remain in place, site is clean, and silt fence has been repaired and in

place. Working on several projects. All photographed. New owners seem to be working on keeping the site clean and well maintained.

So the County inspector is not here. He is not observing violations of these thirty-two conditions. This is a semantics discussion. I'm not at all knocking the County for wanting to protect its' interests. Okay? It has interests, and it's here to protect them. But this is an ongoing business that's supporting people. It's bringing in waste that needs to be disposed of safely. This is a complicated operation. It was taken over from other owners. And I believe the new owners are making a very good effort to operate it properly. The Sunoco woody sludge and the bauxite, that was DEQ saying, "What is that?" And we said this is what it is. They said okay. That's all that happened. But the County had already started its process here, and now it's shifting it. All right? Because it realized that that CUP was for the entire site and its operation.

So, I make those points. I really do appreciate the courtesy that you've all shown us this morning, and the fairness, and your questioning. But we obviously have an important operation and we want to protect it. If this ends up in court, I want to tell you, this is just my job, and this is what we're trying to do. Okay? And nothing more. And I do appreciate very much your fair consideration.

Mr. Mackey - All right. Thank you, Mr. Plumlee. Oh, we have a question.

Ms. Harris - Mr. Plumlee, you didn't answer my question. How long are we going to have the business at this location? Do you know how long?

Mr. Plumlee - I hope it's going to be—well hold on. Do I have an answer to that question? I don't know, so let me not speculate. But I would assume it's longer than the period we have left remaining at the landfill because it's an additional eleven acres for development. And I know that's larger than the area that we're closing in on. I hope that makes sense.

Mr. Green - All right. I have a question. The acreage that you had at first was three acres? No.

Mr. Plumlee - No sir. So you mean at first—see these started in the '80s, these landfills. They've been around for a long time. They now take up 107.8 acres without the Simons' property, which is about 11-1/2 acres. So that 107 loops around like a horseshoe, and this 11 acres sits in the middle of it. It would fill in the horseshoe. I hope that makes sense the way I've described it. But I don't have a picture right here, just an overall view of the landfill.

3002 Male - We have one.

Mr. Blankinship - Do you want to put it up?

)	3005	Mr. Conn. Llaw long did it take you to fill that 107 cores?				
	3006	Mr. Green - How long did it take you to fill that 107 acres?				
	3007	Mr. Plumlee - That's been going since the '80s. So it was				
	3008	Darbytown Road Landfill. And I actually think it was a county landfill underneath				
	3009 3010	it. So even below it there's the county landfill that was purchased, made part of				
	3010	TEEL or Darbytown one. And then those two landfills were combined.				
	3011	TELE of Darbytown one. And then those two landing were combined.				
	3012	Mr. Green - So someone could gauge eleven acres—a				
	3013	mathematical equation could tell you how long.				
	3015	mathematical equation could tell you now long.				
	3016	Mr. Plumlee - I wasn't prepared with that, but it could be				
	3017	determined. I wasn't prepared to do that today.				
	3018	determined. I wash't propared to do that today.				
	3019	Mr. Blankinship - I can give you briefly. This is probably the best				
	3020	illustration. This is Darbytown Road along here, and this is the railroad track				
	3021	along here. So that low trestle is here. And Ms. Harris, the office is right there.				
	3022	<u></u>				
	3023	This here was originally the Darbytown Road Landfill. This was originally Cox's				
	3024	landfill. And right here is the small area that was once the City of Richmond. That				
	3025	was not construction/demolition debris; that was a sanitary landfill. So that was				
	3026	closed. And then this was opened as a construction/demolition debris landfill.				
	3027	This was owned separately by a different company. TEEL came in 2007 and				
Ì	3028	combined those, and this is what he describes as the horseshoe. This area right				
	3029	here was the Simons Hauling Company. That was what they applied to add in				
	3030	2013.				
	3031					
	3032	The important thing to bear in mind is that you have a 100-foot buffer between				
	3033	each landfill and its property line. That means you have a slope going down to				
	3034	that point. By adding a site in the middle, not only do you have the site in the				
	3035	middle, but you also get rid of those buffers on the existing site. And rather than				
	3036	sloping down toward that buffer, you can now slope up toward the middle. So the				
	3037	amount of air space that's added is considerably more than it looks like just				
	3038	taking an eleven-acre site.				
	3039	Management of the facility of countries and that in 2012 when this was board the				
	3040	My memory may be faulty. I want to say that in 2013 when this was heard the				
	3041	speculation was that there was as much as thirty years of additional life in that				
	3042	middle parcel.				
	3043	Mr. Green - Okay.				
	3044	Mr. Green - Okay.				
	3045 3046	Mr. Blankinship - And the three years was the life expectancy without it.				
	3046	And the time years was the me expectancy without it.				
	3047	Mr. Green - So in essence, they're purchasing more land to				
	3049	extend the life of the landfill.				
)	3050	extend the me of the fallatin.				
•	3030					

3051 3052	Mr. Blankinship -	Yes. That's what was accomplished in 2013.
3053	Mr. Green -	What about the other areas? Could they purchase
3054	that to keep	
3055	·	
3056	Mr. Blankinship -	These are older landfills. I'm sorry.
3057		· ·
3058	Mr. Green -	Can they come down even more and purchase more?
3059		
3060	Mr. Blankinship -	I have not heard anyone speculate about purchasing
3061		ed by the state. I believe this is a state storage facility
3062		Dominion Virginia Power over here. And of course the
3063		he north. So I think they are pretty well locked in to the
3064	boundaries they have now	/, unless the state—
3065 3066	Mr. Green -	A potential for another thirty years.
3067	MI. Gleen -	A potential for another thirty years.
3068	Mr. Blankinship -	Yes.
3069	W. Dankilonp	100.
3070	Ms. Harris -	Mr. Blankinship, do we know the elevation of the old
3071		ating the horseshoe? Do we know the elevation?
3072		· ·
3073	Mr. Blankinship -	If you need to know that, I can find it.
3074		
3075	Ms. Harris -	Okay.
3076	Mar Diagrams in	I land be an Arm that a second
3077	Mr. Blankinship -	I don't have it on the top of my head.
3078 3079	Ms. Harris -	I know it's visible for miles. I don't like to speak for
3080		It the CUP is not to adversely affect the health, safety,
3081		nity. I think we need to keep that in the back of our
3082		to perform, but we don't want to adversely affect the
3083	health, safety, or welfare of	
3084	•	
3085	Mr. Plumlee -	I just want to add—and this is not just to be a smart
3086	aleck or argumentative.	
3087		
3088	Ms. Harris -	Okay.
3089		
3090	Mr. Plumlee -	I'll say that in advance, because you know lawyers
3091		nstantly. By shutting us down, you're not going to do
3092	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	But you may do away with the things that monitor what's onitoring needs to be continued on into the future. So I
3093 3094	-	you're saying. So anyway, I hope that answers it. And
3094		k. I just want to point out that it's already up there.
2007	not being a smart alco	in i just main to point out that it's alleady up there.

3097 3098	Mr. Mackey - Anyone in opposition?	Is there anyone else that is here to speak in support?
3099		
3100	Mr. Green -	I have another question.
3101		
3102	Mr. Mackey -	For who?
3103		
3104	Mr. Green -	If you shut it down, what happens? Well, two
3105	questions.	
3106		
3107	Mr. Mackey -	Let me bring Mr. Tokarz back up so he can rebut, and
3108	then we can ask.	
3109		
3110	Mr. Green -	And then the second question I have is in reference to
3111	•	definitely understand that because I'm in the healthcare
3112		ell that area of development over to the left, was that
3113	before the landfill or did th	at come after the landfill?
3114		
3115	Mr. Blankinship -	Most of that was developed in the period where there
3116	•	struction, demolition, and debris landfills that were
3117		level of intensity. They were both local contracting
3118		EEL bought the property, most of that area had been
3119		n TEEL bought the property and combined the landfills,
3120	•	and then later an out-of-state group that operated the
3121		higher intensity. The landfill was there before most of
3122		but the landfill changed dramatically in character in
3123	2007.	
3124		
3125	Mr. Green -	What has been the reaction of the neighbors?
3126		
3127	Mr. Blankinship -	In the 2009-2010 time frame when the coal ash was
3128		great deal of objection. We had a lot of phone calls. We
3129		and we had show cause hearings. That's why we had
3130	the lawsuits.	
3131		Det the day on a second
3132	Mr. Green -	But that was resolved.
3133	M DI 11 11	Va. 70 and Last Const. Last bearing asked
3134	Mr. Blankinship -	Yes. The coal ash issue has been resolved.
3135	14. 0.	Dud -in an Alexandra de la lacada de in concerno
3136	Mr. Green -	But since then what's been their concern?
3137	Ma Diaminahia	I would sharestorize them as well I weekship
3138	Mr. Blankinship -	I would characterize them as—well, I probably
3139		're not here today, and I'm not authorized to speak for
3140	them.	

Mr. Tokarz - I can, members of the Board, speak to the County's position with respect to the landfill.

Mr. Blankinship - Let me get one more statement of fact in before you do. Ms. Harris, the highest point of the landfill is 314 feet. The middle of the horseshoe, the S. B. Cox construction yard was 136 feet. So it's about 170 feet of additional elevation.

3150 Ms. Harris - Okay, thank you.

Mr. Mackey - Thank you, Mr. Blankinship. Okay, Mr. Tokarz.

Mr. Tokarz - I can speak to the question that you just raised about the position of the folks around the landfill. Number one, the County came and opposed the granting of the use permit in 2013. In 2015 when they went to apply for a permit from the state from the Central Virginia Waste Management Authority, the Board of Supervisors unanimously adopted a resolution opposing the granting of the CVWMA permit. Sent County staff to appear at the CVWMA permit hearing to oppose the granting of a CVWMA permit, and the CVWMA board unanimously agreed not to grant a permit for the additional landfill area that was being requested.

So the County's position is very clear. You have in your materials letters from Don McEachin, who's now Congressman McEachin, a state senator at the time, and two delegates who were opposed to the expansion of the landfill. That was submitted to the CVWMA.

Mr. Plumlee said right at the end of his remarks you have to keep this landfill in operation to monitor what's going on. Mr. Plumlee knows, I'm sure, that if that landfill is closed, it's going to be subject to strict DEQ requirements for closing the landfill and capping it enough to make sure there are no adverse effects from the closure of that landfill. That is state law. There's no doubt about it. You do not need to keep the landfill open just to keep the bad things that are in there from seeping out. That's going to be controlled during the closure whenever that occurs. And that's a matter of state law.

Now, here's what I'm going to add, the piece of information you haven't been told yet about the coal ash. You heard about the voluntary dismissal, but what you didn't hear about is why. I was involved in that lawsuit. Ms. Harris knows. They came in and they took every bit of coal ash out of that landfill. They took all of the tires out of there. That's why we agreed to the dismissal of the case. They removed all the stuff that was in violation of the use permit. The reason I brought this up in my materials is the BZA agreed in 2011 these are not materials that should be in the landfill. These are not materials that are in accordance with the use permit. It's the same situation we have here today.

In 2009/2010/2011, TEEL came in and said, "Well it's permitted by DEQ as a beneficial use," and that part's true. Mr. Schmidt as well. It was permitted by DEQ. But it wasn't in accordance with the County use permit. It was not a permitted use. The BZA said it wasn't a permitted use. They removed all the stuff.

And we're in the same situation here. It doesn't matter what the state says is okay to do. That may be okay under state regulations, but the petition before you is for revocation of the County's use permit. The County's use permit is very clear in terms of saying . . . the debris [sic] shall only accept construction, demolition, and debris waste. There is no exception for industrial waste coming in as cover. There's nothing that authorizes that. In fact, if you look at the next sentence it says biodegradable material shall not—no or shall any biodegradable material other than woody waste from construction, demolition, or land-clearing operations be deposited or used as fill or cover material. The BZA said in 2013 you can't use biodegradable stuff as cover. So when they come in and tell you that it's permitted under condition 20, exactly not the case.

Mr. Plumlee says Mr. Tokarz is not an expert on industrial waste, and I agree I'm not an expert. But number one, the old country song says your eyes aren't going to lie to you. That's not demolition debris. That's not construction debris. And if you don't believe me, and you don't believe the DEQ when they said it's industrial waste, take a look at the Generator's Waste Profile form, the one that was submitted by Chemtree. Number 11, is this waste a result of an industrial process? Their answer is filter cake.

If you take a look at the Sunoco generator waste form, they say, "Is this waste a result of an industrial process?" Yes. Paper mill sludge. So it's not me telling you it's industrial waste; it's the generators themselves telling you it's industrial waste. Mr. Plumlee, TEEL, cannot tell you anything in this use permit that allows the deposit or the use of industrial waste at this landfill. In fact, the reason the conditional use permit was written the way it was in 2013 was to prevent anything except for CCD waste, construction and demolition waste to be used or woody waste to be used for fill material. So the use permit is pretty straightforward.

Now, they complain you didn't say you couldn't do it. But they turn it on its head. So the use permit says you can only accept construction and demolition waste. That's what it says. It doesn't allow you to accept it for any other purpose. The fact that DEQ says it's okay doesn't make it okay under the County's use permit.

It's true the County has changed its position since August. I told you that. We changed our position because we found out about this stuff that DEQ found when they went out there. We didn't change our position, though, as to their noncompliance with conditions 1 and 4. That's the same position we had in August. We just added the additional one because now we had the pictures, now we had the forms that show they weren't in compliance with the use permit.



3234			
3235	I won't go over that part.	I'll also mention this to you. No matter what the state	
3236	has said, no matter what	the BZA approval letter said, none of that changed. The	
3237	vision in 24-116(c) of the	County Code, which required the beginning of the-the	
3238		a year. It's true that it changed from one year to two	
3239		n comply with the two-year requirement. So whether it's	
3240		3, which was subsection C, or whether it's the one in	
3241		ection D, they haven't complied with either one of those.	
3242	,		
3243	So at the end of the day-	-one other point. We're not asking the BZA to revoke	
3244	-	f the NOV. We're not asking you to accept that the state	
3245		d them in violation of anything. What we're saying is	
3246	, ,	Violation provided information which clearly establishes	
3247		ermit on the County's side. We're not depending on any	
3248		depending on any enforcement action from DEQ.	
3249			
3250	We're simply saving—an	nd you haven't heard anybody deny it-you can't put	
3251	, , , ,	n industrial process into the landfill under condition 20.	
3252	, ,	ite mud from an industrial process under condition 20.	
3253	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	or missed it, thank goodness for the DEQ inspector who	
3254		obtained the forms, and submitted it to you. That	
3255	•	erted. The evidence is right there in front of you. You	
3256		; you've got it right in front of you. That's the evidence	
3257	that we ask you to rely on		
3258	mar me den yeu te reiy en	•	
3259	I'll be glad to answer any	further questions.	
3260	in so giad to another any	ratifier questions.	
3261	Mr. Mackey -	Any further questions for Mr. Tokarz? All right. Thank	
3262	you, sir.	They return questions to this Tokasz, This right. Thank	
3263	you, on.		
3264	Mr. Tokarz -	Thank you.	
3265	m. Tokaiz	mank you.	
3266	Mr. Mackey -	Just briefly.	
3267	Wit Widokoy	odot bhony.	
3268	Mr. Plumlee -	I do want to point out since we've been coming here	
3269		en no audience members here opposing the landfill. I	
3270	think that speaks volumes.		
3271	Copound Foldinoc	•	
3272	Mr. Beil -	May I answer that question? In the last several years,	
3273		ut up thirty-some different—	
3274	and one don that you p	at ap time, outlier amorotic	

Mr. Plumlee -

Mr. Bells -

3275 3276

3277

3278

3279

got from that hearing-the stop signs, the trucks, watering the highway, the

trucks overloaded bringing material in and you didn't know what material it was,

Had a big attendance. What you see there is what we

Had a big attendance.

 $\frac{3280}{3281}$ 

and on and on. What Ms. Harris said was that recently it looks like it has improved quite a bit.

Mr. Plumlee - And that brings up a great point. The thirty-two conditions—much more than the early ones—all those conditions went in effect on the entire site right away. That's why I keep going back to it's about the whole site, operating the whole site. That's why we complied with one and four.

Litigating the coal ash issue is not what this whole thing's about. And I do object to that because that was resolved. And as an officer of the court, Mr. Tokarz signed that settlement. Okay. That's not what this is. I wish I had some good song lyrics. I absolutely am without them.

Obviously, the language of condition 20 expanded to regulate the cover. I really want to emphasize that. Condition 20 was there before in the old CUP. But because of all the fuss about what had been used by the prior owners of that landfill, now all of a sudden the County says we're going to regulate cover too. Not just what you accept, but the cover. That's the distinction and the limitations that no hazardous and no biodegradable except woody. Okay? So that's why I'm saying industrial doesn't violate it. It's that plain. It's a very straightforward argument.

 What Ms. Cordell pointed out, her testimony, when you added the conditions, the thirty-two conditions—Ms. Harris—you all said—and Mr. Blankinship wrote his letter. The rules provide it must be acted upon within a year. All right? So we acted upon it. We put in those conditions about how the trucks drive, all those conditions. And it says you may comply with this requirement by obtaining and diligently pursuing all necessary permits and approvals. That's part of why Ms. Cordell said we submitted this in September of 2013. It took DEQ thirty-one months to get back to us and say here is your technical review requirements response. It took us seventeen months or so to respond back to them. That is an unknown process with unknown times with engineers working on unknown things behind unknown desks that are difficult. Okay? They are not things that can be equated down to a formula. That's why it says all applicable permits have to be held. You know? The things you need to operate this place. And we've been operating it.

So I won't bore you with anymore. Thank you very much.

3319 Mr. Mackey - You haven't bored us. Thank you, Mr. Plumlee.

Ms. Harris - Mr. Plumlee, why can't you just agree with #20 and don't accept the construction and demolition debris whether it's cover or for fill land purposes? What is the problem with this condition that you cannot? I mean I know we're dealing with semantics and all of that, but why can't you go by this?

What is so difficult about it?

3326					
3327	Mr. Plumlee -	I think I've spent all my time, Ms. Harris, doing my			
3328		failing to convince you, that we have been complying			
3329		with it all along. That's my point.			
3330	,				
3331	Ms. Harris -	Okay, that's fine.			
3332					
3333	Mr. Plumlee -	The bauxite mud and the woody sludge, as the DEQ			
3334	says, has been used for c	over. I'm saying that is permitted under twenty because			
3335	it's not prohibited. When y	you address cover in it, you say don't use these things.			
3336	Well that implies we can u	use other things. I think that's a fair interpretation of that			
3337	20.				
3338					
3339	Ms. Harris -	Thank you.			
3340					
3341	Mr. Plumlee -	So thank you very much.			
3342					
3343	Mr. Green -	In essence, you're following DEQ, and the County is			
3344	coming in and saying we	want some other things done.			
3345	5	<del>-</del>			
3346	Mr. Plumlee -	That's right.			
3347	Ma O a	And control or that control following DEO			
3348	Mr. Green -	And you're arguing that you're following DEQ.			
3349	Mr. Plumlee -	And—			
3350 3351	WII. Fluilliee -	Allu—			
3352	Mr. Green -	And so the real question is who has the real			
3353	jurisdiction.	The de the real question to this has the real			
3354	janoaranan.				
3355	Mr. Plumlee -	No, I'm not throwing it back at you saying that you're			
3356	asking for something that	DEQ is not and therefore your condition is wrong. I'm			
3357		your condition allows for industrial waste to be used as			
3358	cover. If you read it, it sa	ys that cover can't be these two things. That means it			
3359	can be the other things th	nat are not listed. Woody sludge isn't in there. The pre-			
3360		n there. It doesn't say no hazardous waste, no industrial			
3361		at. So to use it as cover is permissible under your			
3362		we're not violating the County's condition. It's that			
3363	straightforward. It's nothin	g more complicated. Thank you very much.			
3364					
3365	Mr. Mackey -	Thank you, sir. I don't believe we have anybody here			
3366	to speak in favor or agains	st, so we'll go on to the motion portion of this case.			
3367	CUDOMA DOMA The T	ant Fund I amplified. The disputes of allowing constant			
3368	•	ast End Landfill. The director of planning requests			
3369		nal use permit at 1820 Darbytown Road (parcels 808- and 809-707-1585) zoned Business District (B-3) and			
3370 3371	-	in Varina. The planning director states that TEEL is in			
	- Sonorai inggalilai Dialilot	mi varma, ino pianimia ancoloi statos that iele is in			

0	3372 3373	violation of conditions 1, Board?	4, and 20 of the permit. What is the pleasure of the	
	3374			
	3375	Being the Varina magisti	rate, I'll make a motion. I move that we accept the	
	3376	planning director's request for revocation of the conditional use permit. I agree		
	3377	with conditions 1, 4, and 2	0. For these reasons, I make a motion for revocation of	
	3378	the conditional use permit	at 1820 Darbytown Road. Is there a second?	
	3379			
	3380	Ms. Harris -	Second.	
	3381			
	3382	Mr. Mackey -	It's been moved and seconded. Is there any	
	3383	discussion?		
	3384			
	3385	Ms. Harris -	I think we've had enough discussion.	
	3386			
	3387	Mr. Mackey -	I didn't know if anyone here wanted to say something	
	3388	for the record.		
	3389			
	3390	Mr. Green -	What's the real fiscal impact of this if we shut it down?	
	3391			
	3392	Mr. Mackey -	They have other options if it does go forward to court.	
	3393			
	3394	Female -	I'm sorry; I can't quite hear.	
	3395			
	3396	Mr. Mackey -	He asked what was the—ask your question again.	
	3397	_		
	3398	Female -	I heard the question. I just couldn't hear what you	
	3399	said.		
	3400			
	3401	Mr. Mackey -	Oh. I was saying that they have some other options	
	3402	going forward.		
	3403			
	3404	Mr. Green -	So this will probably end up in litigation.	
	3405			
	3406	Mr. Mackey -	I would think. All right. All in favor of the motion say	
	3407	, , ,	e have anyone opposed? Then the ayes have it 5 to 0.	
	3408	The motion is carried.		
	3409			
	3410	•	hearing and on a motion by Mr. Mackey, seconded by	
	3411		cepts the planning director's request for revocation of	
	3412	•	AST END LANDFILL's conditional use permit for an	
	3413		arbytown Road (Parcels 808-706-6679, 808-707-7024	
	3414	•	Business District (B-3) and General Industrial District	
	2415	(M 2) (Varing)		

(M-2) (Varina).

3418 3419 3420 3421	Affirmative: Negative: Absent:	Bell, Green, Harris, Mackey, Reid	5 0 0		
3422 3423 3424 3425	Ms. Harris - as presented.	Mr. Chairman, I move that the minutes be a	pproved		
3426 3427	Mr. Mackey -	Is there a second?			
3428 3429	Mr. Bell -	Second.			
3430 3431 3432 3433	Mr. Mackey - It's been moved and seconded that the minutes be approved as presented. All in favor say aye. Those opposed say no. The ayes have it 5 to 0.				
3434 3435 3436 3437	On a motion by Ms. Harris, seconded by Mr. Bell, the Board <b>approved as bresented</b> the <b>Minutes of the February 22, 2018</b> , Henrico County Board of Coning Appeals meeting.				
3438 3439 3440 3441 3442	Affirmative: Negative: Absent:	Bell, Green, Harris, Mackey, Reid	5 0 0		
3443 3444 3445 3446	Mr. Mackey -	There's no further business; the meeting is adj	ourned.		
3447 3448 3449		William Mackey, O	١.		
3450					
3451		William M. Mackey			
3452		Chairman			
3453					
3454		$\Omega_1 \Omega_1 \Omega_2 \Omega_1$			
3455		(4) $(4)$ $(4)$ $(4)$			
3456					
3457		B. Jania Bl. Harris Alab			
3458		Benjamin Blankinship, AICP			
3459		Secretary			
3460					
3461					
3462					
3463					